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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 18™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, 287+ SEPTEMBER,
2017 AT 12:00 NOON AT REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT SHOPPING
MALL, PHASE - I, DiLF CITY, GURUGRAM - 122 002 TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the
financial year ended 315t March, 2017 together with the Reports of Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To confirm interim dividend on following:

. 100, 12% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/~ each (12% 'RPS'); and

ii. 4000, 9% Non-Cumuigtive Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each (9% 'RPS').

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anupam Sharma
[DIN- 05234238), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

To appoint Statutery Auditors and fix their remuneration and pass the
foifowing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139,142 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
fime being in force read with the Companies{Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended ("the Act”), S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (FRN. 301003E/E300005) be and are hereby
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, in place of the
retiring Statutory Auditors Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of the 18" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) fill the conclusion of 239 AGM, at such remuneration
as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s}, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and any other
appiicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory amendment, modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) ("the Act") Mr. Manoj
Kumar Dua (DIN-02794998), who was appointed as an additional Director
w.e:f. 5 August, 2017, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting, in terms of Section 161 of the Act read with the Articles of
Association of the Company and in respect of whom the Company had
received a nofice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act
signifying its infension to propose Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua as a candidate for
the office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, fiable to retire by rotation.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following Resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and any other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory amendment, modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and as may be enacted
from time to time) {"the Act"), provisions of other applicable iaws, if any, the
consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
fhe Board of Directors, for granfing of unsecured loan repayable on
demand to DLF Home Developers Limited, a fellow subsidiary Company, for
an amount up fo ¥ 70/- Crore (Rupees Seventy Crore Only}, in addition to
the existing sanctioned limits, at a rate of interest of 11.50% 0.4, or such
other rate as may be mutually agreed [not less than the prevailing yieid
rate of Government Securities), for its business requirements, in one or more
franches and that the period of repayment, rate of interest and other terms
may be varied / alfered for such further period(s) on such other terms as
may be mutually agreed from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee
thereof) of the Company or any person(s} as may be authorized by the
Board be and are hereby authorized to decide, finalize, execute, sign, alter,
vary, revise, renew, modify and accept amendment(s)/ renewal/ extension
of the loan, terms & conditions thereof, from fime to time and execute such
documents to give effect to the amendment / alteration / variation /
modification / renewal and to take all steps, to do all such acts, deeds and
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things as may be considered necessary or expedient for giving effect to the
above resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For DLF Emporio Limited

Anup /h{rr/na
Date :05.08.2017 Director and’Manager

Piace : Gurugram DIN - 05234238
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NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL
INSTEAD OF HERSELF/HIMSELF IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013. THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED
SHOULD REACH THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY
COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT
HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

The details of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including Secretarial Standard-2) are annexed
hereto and forms part of this Notice.

Keeping in view the requirements set-out in the Companies Act, 2013
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company have
recommended appointment of SR. Batiiboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (FRN 301003E/E300005) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion
of 18t Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 234 Annudal
Generdl Meeting, at such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board
of Directors of the Company. The first year of Audit by the aforesaid
Auditors will be of the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ending 31st March, 2018. They have consented to and
confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits
specified under Section 141(3}(g) of the Companies Act, 2013. They
have also confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as
Auditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1),
141(2) and 141(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of
the Companies [(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. The Board
commends the Qrdinary Resoiution set-out at ltem No. 4 of the Nofice
for approval by the members.

The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
setting out the material facts concerning the business under item no. §
and 6 of the notice is annexed hereto and forms part of the notice.

Route map of the venue of the Meeting {including prominent land
mark) is annexed.

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and statutory registers
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company at
Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana - 122 002 on all
working days up to the date of the AGM and shall also be available
forinspection at the AGM.
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7. Copy of the full Annual Report (2016-17} is being sent to dli the persons
who are entitled to receive the same. Hard copy of the Annual Report
will be made avdailable to debenture holders who request for the
same.,

8. The Annual Report is also available on the Company's website af the
link http://www.difemporio.conmy/investors/index.htmil.
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STATEMENT
[Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013]

tem No. §

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder (‘the Act') read with Arficles of Association
Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua (DIN-02794998) was appoinfed as an additional
director of the Company w.e.f. 5% August, 2017. Accordingly, Mr. Manoj
Kumar Dua will hold office up to the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

The Company had received a nofice in writing under the provisions of
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(“the Act") dlong with required deposit proposing the candidature of
Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua for the office of Director of the Company liable to
retire by rotation.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua had given his consent to act as the Director of
Company and a declaration to the effect that he is not disqualified from
being appointed as Director in terms of Section 1464 of the Act.

Information about the appointee:

Age 43 Years

Qudiifications Qualified Cost and Management
Accounfant, Company  Secretary  and
Chartered Secretary {London, UK).

Experience 20 years in Corporate Financial Planning &
Control, Accounts, Finance / fund
management, Commercial Operations,
Systems implementations, Strategic Planning,
Auditing, Direct & Indirect Taxation, Costing,
Legal, Secretarial and compliance functions in
manufacturing as well as Service
organization(s}. Mr. Dua has been part of DLF
Group for past 11 years and currently holds the
position of Assistant Vice President (Finance
and Accounts) Mall division.

Terms and Conditions of | Appointment as Director of the Company
Appointment along with | liable to retire by rotation.

details of remunerafion
sought to be paid: Remuneration- N.A.
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Date of first appointment | 05.08.2017
on the Board
Shareholding in the | NiL
Company:
Relatfionship with Other | NIL
Directors and other
KMP(S):

Number of Board Meetings | N/A
attended during the year

(2016-17):

Other Directorship(s): DLF Info City Developers (Chandigarh) Limited;
Chandrajyoti  Estate  Developers  Private
Limited;

DLF info City Developers (Kolkata} Limited;

DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited:;

DLF City Centre Limited;

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited; and
Aadarshini Real Estate Developers Private
Limited.

Committee Positions in | Audit Commitiee

other Public Companies DLF City Cenfre Limited, Member; and

Riveric Commercial - Developers  Limited;
Member,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

DLF City Centre Limited, Member; and

Riveric  Commercial Developers Limited,
Member,

Keeping in view his vast experience, expertise and knowledge, it will be in
the interest of the Company that Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua be appointed as
Director liabie to retire by rotation.

All the documents as referred above shall be open for inspection by the
members during business hours on any working day at the registered office
of the company and shall also be available at the meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives, except Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at the
item No. 5 of the notice.
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Your Directors recommend the abovementioned resolution to be passed as
an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM No.6

The Company has received request from DLF Home Developers Limited, @
fellow subsidiary company, for granting of loan repayable on demand, for
an amount up to 70 Crore {Rupees Seventy Crore Only), in addition to the
existing sanctioned limits, at a rate of interest of 11.50% p.a. or such other
rate as may be mutually agreed (not less than the prevailing vield rate of
Govermnment Securities), for its business requirements, in one or more
tranches and that the period of repayment, rate of interest and other terms
may be varied / altered for such further period(s) on such other terms as
may be mutudlly agreed from time to time.

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the
Members by way of a Special Resolution is required if the aggregate of
loans, investments and guarantees/securities exceeds the prescribed limits,
i.e. 60% of the paid-up share capitdl, free reserves and securities premium
account or 100% of its free reserves and securities premium account,
whichever is more. Upon granting of above loan the prescribed limits as
mentioned above may exceeds, therefore, approval of the Members has
been sought.

All the documents as referred above shall be open for inspection by the
members during business hours on any working day at the registered office
of the Company and shall also be available at the meeting.

Neither, the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and/or their relatives
holds 2% or more of the paid up share capital in any of the Companies nor
any of them, in any way, concerned or interested either financially or
otherwise in the above resolution,

Your Directors recommend the abovementioned resolution to be passed as
Special Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For DLF Emporio Limited

Anupa rma
Date :05.08.2017 Director and Manager
Place : Gurugram DIN - 052342%8 o

v
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant fo Section 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3)}
of the Companies (Management and Administration } Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034148
Name of the Company: DLF Emporio Limited

Registered office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana -
122 002

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of ... Shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoint

l.Name:.........ccvveii.

E-mail Id:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for me /us and on my/our
behalf at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company, fo be held on
Thursday, 28th September, 2017 at 12:00 Noon at registered office of the
Company at Shopping Mall, Phase - |, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:
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Resl
No.

Resolution

For #

Against#

Abstained#

Adoption of Audited Financial
Statement as at 31 March, 2017
together with reports of Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To confirm inferim dividend on
following:

100, 12% Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each (12% 'RPS').

4000, 9% Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each (9% '‘RPS').

Re-appointment of Mr. Anupam
Sharma as Director, who retires by
rotation,

Appointment of S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP  {(FRN. 301003E/E300005) as
Statutory Auditors and to fix their
remunerction.

Appointment of Mr. Mano] Kumar
Dua as the Director of Company
liable to retire by rotation.

Granting of inter-corporate Loan to
DLF Home Developers Limited, a
fellow subsidiary Cormpany.

Signed this ....... day of........... 2017.

Signature of Member

Signature of Proxy holder (s)

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of

appropridie
value
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Notes:

1} This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed
and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least forty
eight (48) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behatif of members not exceeding fifty
and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

# 4) This is only optfional. Piease put ‘v* or *x' in the appropriaie column
against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave 'For/or
‘Against’ column blank against the resolution, your Proxy will be
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems appropriate.

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the
meeting in person, if he/she so desire.

e S

LAY
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
18t Annual General Meeting - Thursday, 28t September, 2017

t. Full Name and Registered
Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

2. Full Name of the Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3. Folio No. / DP id - Client Id*

4. No. of Equity Shares held

| / We, Being the Registered Shareholder / Proxy for the Registered
Shareholder** of the Company, hereby record my / our presence at
18" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday,
28th September, 2017 at 12:00 Noon at registered office of the Company at
Shopping Mall, Phase - 1, DLF City, Gurugram - 122 002 and af any
adjournment(s) thereof,

Member's / Proxy’s Signature

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form
**Strike off whichever is nof relevant
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Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General

Meeting

Name of Director Mr. Anupam Sharma

| Age 37

Qualifications PGDBM from Institute of Marketing and
Management.

Experience

Having rich experience of over 15 years in
managing and handling Cinemas, Amusement
Parks and Mail management. Prior to joining DLF
Group, he was asscociated with PVR Cinemas
and Appu Ghar.

Terms and Conditions

Director liable to refire by rotation.

Detqils of remuneration
sought to be paid

Remuneration- NLA,

other Public Companies

Date of first appointment | 26.03.2012
on the Board

Shareholding in the | Nil
Company

Relationship with Other | Nil
Directors and other

KMP(S)

Number of Board | 5 (Five}
Meetings attended during

the year (2016-17)

Other Directorship(s) Nii
Committee Positions in | Nil
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ROUTE MAP OF 18™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 18" Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company together with the oudned financial

results for the financial year ended 31t March, 2017.

Financial Results

(X in Lakh)
2016-17 2015-16
Total income from operations 23,001.84 19,870.35
Total Expenses 11,070.54 B,727.57
Profit before tax 11,931.30 11,142.78
Less: Tax Expenses 3,629.42 3,375.63
Net Profit 8,301.88 7,767.15

, v &

Review of Operations

During the FY 2016-17, income from operations has been increased by 15.76%
from 19,870.35 lakh (previous year) to ¥23,001.84 lakh due to increase in
rental income, interest income and signage/promotional income. Further, in
the current financial year, common area maintenance/HVAC (heating,
ventilation and air-conditioning} was charged directly to tenants under the
new arangements which led to increase in income from operations. The
expenses of the Company increased by 26.85% from 8,727.57 lakh (previous
year) to ¥11,070.54 lakh due to amount spent on marketing initiatives and
promotional activities caried out by the Company. Further, the common
area mainfenance/HVACheating, ventilation and air-conditioning) expense
was incurred by the Company under the new arrangements leading to
increase in expenses. The net profit of the Company stood at ¥8,301.88 lakh
an increase of 6.88% against ¥7,767.15 lakh {previous vear). The basic &
diluted EPS for the FY 2016-17 is%167.41/- as compared to T156.63/- in previous
yedar.

The Ministry of Corporate  Affairs  vide its  notification  dated
16ih February, 2015, notified the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
applicable for certain classes of Companies. Ind AS has replaced the existing
Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amended.
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Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2017
and 31 March, 20146 including fransition date balance sheet as at 15t April,
2015 have been presented in accordance with Ind AS. The reconciliations
and descriptions of the effect of the transition from the previous GAAP 1o Ind
AS have been set-out in note no, 44 of the financial statements.

About DLF Emporio Mali; India’s first and finest Luxury Shopping Destination

DLF Emporio is a name truly synonymous with luxury. Exclusivity, space &
aesthetics are the signatures of this spectacular offering. It is here, where
india's leading designers & International luxury brands, exquisite iifestyle
products and services are showcased all under one roof. DLF Emporio has
been conceptudlized and designed with the sole purpose of simply offering
sheer luxury shopping experience for its esteemed customers. Currently there
are over 54 International brands and 54 Indian designers, 4 Restaurants and
1 International Salon present in this generous space.

We have created very unique benchmarks in the luxury industry with
DLF Emporio. The brand is committed to not only keep the experience for a
shopper very high we also work constantly towards creating  higher
penchmarks and quality standards within the industry. As a testimonial to the
superb benchmarking in the Luxury Industry, DLF Emporio has been adjudged
as the “iconic Project 2008" by Global Initiative for Restructuring Environment
& Management, "Best Shopping Centre" by the “Shoppers and Consumers
insight” and “lmages Group" from 2009-2012, “Most Admired Shopping
Centre of the year 2014" by CMO Asia and "Asia’s best Real Estate Project”
by World Consulting & Research Corporation. DLF Emporio has recently
recelved "5 Star rating in Occupational Health and Safety” by British Safety
Council. ICE Awards has awarded our in-house magazine “The Wedding Issue
2014" amongst the top 100 magazines of the country and a “Certiificate of
Merit" to “The Festive Issue 2015",

Future Outlook

The future of retail is becoming increasingly exciting with experience being
rendered the greatest emphasis by various stakeholders. This variety of
experience will be the key inflection point for success of malls, with food and
pbeverages and enfertainment facilities increasing in importance. Innovative
developers are introducing new entertainment options in the malls and
retailers are trying to merge online experiences with offline one to enhance
customer's experience.

As a result, retail is being redefined for every stakeholder viz. retailers,
investors, developers and consumers, because of pace at which the
‘experience of refailing’ has been changing over the last few years.
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Retail Markets need facilitation from the Government in terms of clear
policies for the Sector and creating retall zones, thereby reducing
infrastructure bottlenecks. Recent FDI relail policy and state level retail
policies, where the Government is taking up the role of facilitator to create
an environment conducive to retail business are steps in right directions.

Dividend
(a) 9% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Your Board had declared an inferim dividend of 3.62/-[approx.) per
9% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T100/- each
(hereinafter referred to as '9% RPS') on 4,000, 9% RPS amounting to T14,499/-
for the period 15t April, 2016 to 26th August, 2016 {F.Y. 2016-17) at its meeting
held on 26 August, 2016, The said 4,000 9% RPS were redeemed during the
financial year under review,

(b) 12% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Your Board had declared an interim dividend of I4.83/- per
12% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T100/- each
(hereinafter referred to as '12% RPS’) on 100, 12% RPS, amounting fo T483/-,
for the period 15t April, 2016 to 26t August, 2016 (F.Y. 2016-17) at its meeting
neid on 26t August, 2016, The said 100, 12% RPS were redeemed during the
financial year under review.

(c) Equity Shares

Your Board of Directors for the financial year under review, with a view to
conserve resources for future development and expansion have not
recommended any dividend on Equity Shares.

The total dividend payout on preference shares for the financial year 2016-17
is ¥14,982/- (X37,200/- for FY 2015-16). Tax on dividend on preference shares
for the Financial Year 2016-17 is 3,050/~ (37,711/- for FY 2015-16}.

Reserves

Puring the financial year under review, the Company has tfransferred
T1,748.40 lakh (X1,753.19 lakh for the FY 2015-16) to Debenture Redemption
Reserve fowards redemption of redeemabie non convertible debentures.

Material Changes and Commitment

There was no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year of the Company to which the financiai statement relate and
the date of the report.
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Changes in the nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year under
review,

Share Capital Struciure

During the financial year under review, the Company has redeemed
4,000, 9% Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 100/~ each
fully pdaid af par aggregating %4,00,000/- and 100, 12% Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥100/- each fully paid at par aggregating
to ¥10,000/- out of the credit balance lying in the Profit and Loss Account of
the Company.

Apart from the above there were no changes in share Capital of the
Company, _

Commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS)

9,250 secured, rated, fisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures of face
vaiue of 10 Lakhs each having coupon rate of 10.90% per annum payable
on monthly rests under commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS)
sfructure aggregating to 3525 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred and Twenty Five
Crores Only) ("Debentures”) issued and allotted by the Company continues
to be listed with Bombay Stock Exchange.

ICRA Ltd. has re-affirmed the rating ‘ICRA} AA(SQ)Stable’ on the CMBS, vide
letfer dated 7t November, 2016.

CRISIL Ltd. has reaffirmed the rating ‘CRISIL AA(SO)/Stable’ on the CMBS, vide
fetter dated éth March, 2017.

Fixed Deposiis

The Company has not accepted/renewed any public deposits during the
financial year under review,

Holding Compgany

Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited and DLF Cyber City
Developers Limited are the holding companies of your Company. DLF Limited
is the ultimate holding Company of your Company.
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Subsidiary Companies

During the financial year under review your Company does not have any
subsidiary Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorpltion and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134{3){m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are given at Annexure-A hereto and form part of this report.

Parliculars of Employees

The Company has ne employee whose particulars are required to be given
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and any amendments made there under from time to time.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your
Directors confirm that-

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed dlong with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preveniing and detecting fraud and other
ireguiarities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;
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(e) the directors have laid down infernal financial controls to be
folliowed by the company and that such internal financial controis
are adeguate and were operating effectively; and

[f} the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the financial year under review, the Board met 6 [six) times i.e. on
May 17, August 26, November 04, December 01, 2016, January 30 and
March 03, 2017 as per the under noted attendance. The maximum interval
petween any two meetings was 101 days. The requisite quorum was present
in all the meetings:-

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director b 6
2. Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarma | Independent 4 4
{Demised on January 09, 2017} Director
3. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent. 6 6
~ Director
4, Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 1 1
(w.e.f January 30, 2017) Director
5. Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Nominee 6 5
Director
é Mr. Anupam Sharma Director and 6 5
Manager
7. Mr, Vivek Jhunjhunwala Director 6 6
(up to 30" June, 2017)
Audit Commitiee
The Audit Committee consists of the following members:
Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarmg, Independent Director Chairman
[Demised on January 09, 2017) (till January 08, 2017)
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Director Member
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Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director _ Member
Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Chairman
(w.e.f. January 30, 2017) (w.e.f. May 22, 2017)

The Board has accepted all recommendations of the Audit Committee.

During the financial year 2016-17, four meetings of the Audit Committee was
held on May 17, August 26, December 01, 2016 and January 30, 2017 as per
the under noted altendance. The maximum interval between any two
meetings was 101 days. The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings:-

S.No, Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarma, Independent 3 3
(Chairman) Director
[Demised on January 09, 2017)
2. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 4 4
Director
3. Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent NA NA
(w.e.f. January 30, 2017} Director
4, Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 4 4

Vigil Mechanism

The Company had established a Viglh Mechanism policy namely
"DLF Emporio Limited - Vigil Mechanism" under the supervision of the Audit
Commitiee.

The Chairman of the Audit committee has been authorised to hear the
grievances of the Directors and employees, if any and take steps to resolve
the issues amicably / award appropriate punishment to the offender and
report the same to the Audit committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company had constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee
consisting of the following members:
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Mr. I8V Panduranga Sarma, Independent Director Chairman
[Demised on January 09, 2017) (1ill January 08, 2017)
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Directaor Member

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Chairman
(w.e.f. January 30, 2017} (w.e.f. March 03, 2017)
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director Member

A copy of "Nomination & Remuneration Policy” shail/ remain open for
inspection by the members during business hours on any working day at the
registered office of the Company and has been disclosed on Company's
website atf the link hitp://www.dIfemporio.com/investors/policies.html.

During the financial year 20146-17, four meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were held on May 17, November 04, 2016,
January 30 and March 03, 2017, the altendance of which is as under and
requisite quorum was present in the meeting:-

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarma, Independent 2 2
(Chairman) (Demised on Director
January 09, 2017}
2. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 4 4
Director
3. | Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, | Independent 1 ]
Independent Director Director
(w.e.f. January 30, 2017)
4, Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 4 4

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of the following

members:

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain, Nominee Director Chairman
Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarmg, Member
Independent Director(Demised on January 09, 2017}

Mr.  Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Member
(w.e.f January 30, 2017)

Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director Member
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During the financial year 2016-17, two meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee was held on May 17, 2016 and March 03, 2017, the
atfendance of which is as under and requisite quorum was present in all the
meetings:-

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Heid Attended
during
tenure
1. | Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Nominee 2 2
(Chairman) Director
2. | Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarma Independent 1 1
(Demised on Janhuary 09, Director
2017)
3. | Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, | Independent ] ]
(w.e.f January 30, 2017) Director
4. | Ms, Dingz Madhukar Director 2 2

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Schedule Vil and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 [hereinafter refered to as the “Act"), the Board of
Directors of the Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
{CSR) Committee. During the financial year under review, the Company has
made significant investments in community welfare initiatives for the
underprivileged through education, training, heaith, environment, capacity
building and rurakcentfric  inferventions through DLF  Foundation,
The Company has spent the prescribed CSR expendiiure of T 1.94 Crores i.e.
2% of the average Net profit of the Company for the last three financial years
on CSR projects/activities.

A copy of “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” shall remain open for
inspection by the members during business hours on any working day at the
registered office of the Company and has been disclosed on Company's
website at the link hitp://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/policies.html. The
Annuai Report on CSR activities is annexed as Annexure-‘B'.

Auditors

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made
thereunder, the term of Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors, expires at the conclusion of the 18" Annual Generdl
Meeting (AGM) of the Company.




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002
{CIN - U74920HR1999PL.C034168) Website: www.difemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414, E~-mail: difemporio@dif.in

The Board has recommended the appocintment of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
(FRN: 301003E/E300005), Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of
18 AGM till the conclusion of 23d AGM for approval of the shareholders,
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP have confirmed their eligibility and qualification to act as Statutory
Auditors of the Company,

Auditors’ Report

There has been no qudlification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer
in the Auditors' Report on the financiais of the Company. The observations of
the Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion
of the Directors, do not call for further comments.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company
Secretaries in Practice, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial
year 2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended
31t March, 2017 is at Annexure-‘C'. The said report does not contain any
qualification, reservation and adverse remarks.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year under review, Mr. TSV Panduranga Sarma, an
Independent Director on the Board of the Company demised on January 09,
2017. The Board places on record its appreciation for the contributions made
by him in the deliberations of the Board.

The Board of Directors on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla as an
Additional Director {in capacity of Independent Director) with effect from
January 30, 2017 and re-appointed Mr, Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent
Director for a further period of 3 vears with effect from March 31, 2017,
subject to the approval of shareholders, in compliance to Section 149 and
161 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The appointment of Mr. Chawla and re-appointment of Mr. Garg as an
Independent Director for a period of 3 years was approved by the
Shareholders af the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 29, 2017.
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The Company has received necessary declarations from Mr. Surinder Singh
Chawla and Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independeni Directors, under
Section 149{7) of the Companies Aci, 2013 that they meet the criteria of
independence Iaid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with
the Articles of Association of your Company, Mr. Anupam Sharma, Director
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment.,

During the financial year under review, Ms, Smiti Mehta resigned from the
position of Company Secretary w.e.f May 06, 2016 and Mr, Gurpreet Singh
resigned as CFO of the Company w.ef. March 04, 2017. Mr. Vivek
Jhunjhunwala resigned from the office of Director w.ef July 1, 2017. The
Board places on record its invaluable contributions made by him in the
deliberations of the Board.

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Commitiee had appointed Ms. Rupa Agarwal as Company
Secretary w.e.f November 04, 2016 and Mr. Hari Krishan Bansal was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. March 04, 2017. Ms. Rupa Agarwal
had resigned from the position of Company Secretary w.e.f 10 June , 2017,

On August 05, 2017, Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua on the recommendation of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee was appcinted by the Board as an
Additional Director on the Board of the Company. The resolution pertaining
to his appointment as director liable to retire by rotation being placed before
the members for their approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The Board recommend his appointment.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua is a Qualified Cost and Management Accountani,
Company Secretary and Chartered Secretary {London, UK) with quadlitative
experience of 20 years in Corporate Financial Planning & Control, Accounts,
Finance/ fund management, Commercial Operations,  Systems
implementations, Strategic Planning, Auditing, Direct & Indirect Taxation,
Costing, Legail, Secretarial and compliance functions in manufacturing as
well os Service organization(s). Mr. Dua has been part of DLF Group for past
11 years and currently holds the position of Assistant Vice President (Finance
and Accounts) Mall division.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 05, 2017, had
appointed Mr. Anuj Kushwaha as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.
August 08, 2017.
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During the financial year under review, no non-executive Directors of the
Company had pecuniary relationship or fransactions with the Company,
other than the sitting fees paid to independent directors and nominee
director and re-imbursement of expenses incurred by non-executive Directors
for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

Mr. Anupam Sharma, Director & Manager and Mr. Hari Krishan Bansal, Chief
Financial Officer are Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualiified under Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Exiract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No.MGT-2 as provided under Section
92{3) of the Act is at Annexure-D.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

Particulars of Loans and investments covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, form part of the notes to the financial statements
provided in this Annual Report.

During the financial year under review, the Company has neither made any
investment nor provided guarantees as covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Transactions with Related parties

The Company has adequate procedures for the purpose of identification
and monitoring of related party(ies) and related party fransactions. None of
the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of
the Act. Information on transactions with related parties pursuant fo Section
134(3)(h) and 136(1) of the Act read with Rule §(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended are available for inspection af the
registered office of the Company.

The Company's policy for related party transactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy intends
to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in
place for all fransactions between the Company and related parties, For
detdils on related party fransactions, members may refer to the notes to the
financical statements,
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Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the
performance of Directors including Independent Direciors. The Board has
carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, iis
Committees and Directors. The evaluation process focused on various
aspects of the Board and Committees functioning such as composition of the
Board and Committees, experience and competencies, performance of
specific dutfies and obligations & compliance management etc. Separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Non-executive
Directors on parameters such as experience, attendance, acquadinfance
with the business, effective participation, vision and strategy, contribution
and independent judgement.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee has oversight in the areas of financial risks and control
and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk
mahagement plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are identified through
a consistently applied methodology., The Company has put in place a
mechanism fo identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key
business objectives.

The Audit Committee also seek independent assurance on specific risks from
internal audit or other assurance reviews.

Internal Financial Controls and Systems

internal financial controls are integral part of the risk management process
addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. The internal
financial controls have been documented and augmented in the day to day
business processes. Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial
contfrols s obtdined through management reviews, self assessment,
continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as testing by the
Statutory/internal Auditor during the course of their audits. Significant audit
observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee,

The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the naiure, size
and complexities of operations.
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Significant and material orders passed by requlators or courts

During the financial year under review, the Company has not received any
significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

Accolades

During the financial year under review, “DLF Emporio” had been awarded
the ‘Retail Property of the Year' by Franchise India ct the 9 Magpie Estate
Award 2017.

Detalls of Debenture Trustee

The details of Debenture Trustees are as under:

Axis Trustee Service Limited

2nd Floor, E, Axis House,

Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg

Worli, Mumbai ~ 400 025

Tel: 022-24255216

Fax: 022-24254200

E-mail ID: debenturetrustee @axistrustee.com

Acknowiedgement

Your Directfors are thankful to the Stakeholders including Central and State
Government authorifies, Financial Institutions, Bankers, Suppliers, Clients and
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the financial year under review.

For and on behdaif of the Board of Directors

wopa i W

Dinaz Madhukar
Date : 05.08.2017 {Director & Manager) (Director)
Place: Gurugram DIN: 05234238 DIN: 034531 37}/
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Annexure-‘A’

Particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134{3)}(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of NIL
ehergy;

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing Sourcing
aiternate sources of energy; electricity from

Open access
model for cost
reduction,

(i) The capital investment on energy conservation NIL

equipments; .
g~

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

{i) The efforts made towards technology absorption; NIL
(ii) fhe benefits derived like product improvement, NIL
cost  reduction, product development or import
substitution;

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during NIL
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)-

Jthe details of technology imported:

Ithe year of import;

Jwhether the technology been fully absorbed;

Jf not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and NIL

Development,

{e!
(b
fe
(d
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(in%)
2016-17 2015-16
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in NIL NIL
terms of actual inflows during the
financial year: and
(ii} The Foreign Exchange outgo during NiL NIL
the financial year in terms of actual
outflows,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anupan%ma W

Dinaz Madhukar
Date : 05.08.2017 {Director & Manager) (Director)
Place: Gurugram DIN: 05234238 DIN: 034531%71)/
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9
of the Companies {Corporate Social Respensibifity) Rules, 2014]

Sl No

Particuiars

Remarks

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or Programs

DLF Emporio Limited has formulated its
CSR Activities to integrate economic,
environmental and social objectives
with lts operations and growth for
common good as per Schedule Vi of
the Companies Act, 2013 and any
amendments or modifications made
thereto.

Weblink to the CSR Policy is :
hitp://www.dlfempeorio.com/investors/
pdfs/CSR Policy DLF Emporio Lid.pdf

Copy of the CSR Policy is available for
inspection by the members during
business hours on any working day at
the registered office of the company
and will also be available at the
meeting.

2. | The Composition of the CSR Commitiee 1) Mr. Raj Kumar Jain (Chairman)
2} Mr.  Surinder  Singh  Chawla
{(Member)
3) Ms, Dinaz Madhukar (Member)
3. | Average net profit of the company for last | ¥96.82 Crores
three financial years
4. | Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of | ¥1.94 Crores
the amount as in item 3 above)
5. | Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the
financial year:

b) Amount unspent, if any:

¢} Manner in which the amount spent
during the financial year is detailed
below:

¥1.94 Crores

Nil
As detailed below




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002

{CIN - U74920HR1999PLC034168) Website: www.dlfemporio.com
Tel No: 01244778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414, E-mail: difemporio@dIf.in

(T in Lakh!
@ BETAILS OF EXPENDITURE
g Amount
o spent: Reasons fo
3 Sector In Direct Cumul
% §. Programme isrRairfﬂxt which the Area / “g’;ﬁ:;? expenditure ative ?;:i%;?: spe!;(glng
% No Name identified project is location (Budgety | °" projects | Qverhe | Expen Implemen | the allotled
b2 covered or ads diture .
& ting budget
£ programmes agency
. Cases of
| socicl
. suppor
& request
were lower
& Social DLF than what
2 Support i Pan . : was
Programme Healthcare Indic 30.78 18.44 0.74 19.18 Founr(];Ioilo budgeted
- Medicat resulting in
c reduction ir
I Devellzgﬁ;ent expenditure
s
Programme compared
to budget.
New
Gurgao DLF
Pfgergnf:ﬁe Healihcare n 10.40 10.11 040 | 1050 | Foundatio NA
9 {Haryan n
a)
Project
mandaged
I New effectively
Swacch égglisggg Gurgao DLF resutting in
Sanitation n 10,40 8.43 0.35 8.95 Foundatio | reduciion in
Programme manageme N
nt (Haryan n expenditure
) Qs
2, compared
to budget.
Urban Solid Gurgao OLE
Waste o n .
t NA
Manageme Sanitation (Haryan 140,40 146.75 5.87 152.60 Foun{c‘ﬁo io
nt Prog Q)
Urban Guraao
Underpriviledg Blood Ur? DLF
3. ed . Healthcare 208 2.67 0.11 2.77 Foundatio NA
Development Donation (chonjzon "
Programme
Totai 194,00 184.60 7.45 194.00

CSR Committee confims the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

-

i~

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain
{(Chairman CSR Committee)
DIN: 000246544

Mr. An Sharma
{Director & Manager)
DIN: 05234238
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SANJAY GROVER & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETAREES
B-88. 1" Floor, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024
Tel - {011) 4679 0000, Fax © (011) 4679 0012
e-mail | contaci@cssanjaygroverin
website | www.cssanjaygrover.in

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315 MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
DLF Emporio Limited
(CIN: U74920HR1999PL.C034168)
Shopping Mall, Phase- 1, DLF City,
Gurgaon- 122002,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by DLF Emporio Limited
(hereinafter called the Company) whose debt securities are listed on BSE Limited.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

We report that-
a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

'b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate {o
‘obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
'secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and

- practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial
statements of the Company.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about
the compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws,

rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
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f) iThe Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
*has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2017
("Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31% March,
2017 according to the provisions of:

()  The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereundg:r;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder:;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the -Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008:

- {(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with clients;

- {c) **The Secdurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 ‘

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

“No evend look place during the audit period.

**Cniy debl securities of the Company are lisled on BSE Limited: as such, provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading}
Regulations, 2015 are not applicable per se. Further, as confirmed by the management, no such fisted securities of the
Company were held and/ or traded by any nsider of the Company during the audit period,
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- We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors (§8-1) and on General Meetings
($8-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the audit period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, to the extent applicable, as mentioned
above.

(vi)The Company has constructed a shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex
named DLF Emporio at Vasant Kunj, New Dethi and further leased it to various
tenants. As informed by the management, there is no sector specific law
applicable on the Company.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the audit period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent of present and therefore,
no dissenting views were required to be captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

- We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that members of the Company in their Annual General Meeting
held on August 26, 2016, pursuant to section 186 of the Act, passed special

~ resolution for granting unsecured loan repayable on demand to DLE Home

- Developers Limited, a fellow subsidiary Company, for an amount up to Rs.
100,00,000/~ (Rupees One Hundred Crore Only), in addition to the existing
sanctioned loan, at a rate of 13.5% p.a. or such other rate as may be mutually
agreed (not less than the prevailing yield rate of government securities), in one or
more tranches.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No. P2001%052900
. \

Lokeﬁ%}iani

New Delhi Partner
August 05, 2017 CP No. 16185
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FORM MGT ¢
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2017
Pursuant fo Section 92 (3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12{1) of the Company
{Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014,

REGISTRATION 8 OTHER DETAILS:

i CiN U74920HR1999PLCO341458
i Registration Date 17/03/1999
i Name of the Company DLF Emporio Limited
v Category/Sub-category of the Public Company, Limited by Shares
Company
v Address of the Registered office Shopping Mall, Phase - 1, DLF Clty, Gurugram - 122 002,
& contact details Haryana, Tel No: 0124-4778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414
Contact Detalls : 0124-4778101/8121
E- mall ID; punjani-rp@dif.in
vi Whether listed company Yes (Debentures are fisted with BSE)
vii Nome , Address & contact delails of [For Debentures:
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, it . |Karvy Computershare Private Limited
any, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31832,Gachlbowlil,

Financlal District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032
Contact Person- Mr. Varghese P.A.: 040-671462222

For Equity :

Alankit Assignments Limited

‘Alankit House' 2E/21, Jhandewalan Extn., New Delhl -
110055

Contact Person- Mr, J.K. Singla : 011-42541960

i PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business octivities contribufing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company shall be

staied
5L No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Real Estate Activities 481- Recl Estaie activities 100

with own or lease properties

I PARTICULARS OF HOEDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCTIATE COMPANIES

SiNo. | NAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF | APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES | SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD

} Richmond Park Property

Mancgement Services Limited
Regd. Office: Shopping Mali, Phase -|  U74920HR1999PLCO34194 Holding 5496% 2{46)
1. BLF City, Gurgaon - 122 002

2 DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
[Holding of Richmond Park Property
Management Services Limited)

U45201HR2004PLCO3607 4 Hoiding 44.92% 2(44)
Regd. Office: 10ih Ficor, Gateway
Tower, DLF City, Phase-ill, Gurgaon -
122002
3 DLF Limited (Holding of DLF Cyber
City Develepers Limited)
L70101HR1963PLCQ02484 Holding - 2{46}

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, 3rd
Floor, Arjun Marg, DLF Cily, Phase-l,
Gurgaon - 122002




v
{) Category - wise Share

SHAREHOLDING PATIERN {Equlty Share caplial Break up as % of total Equity)

Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beglnhning of fhe year

No. of Shares held at lhe end of the year

% change
during ihe
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shates

Demat

Physlcat

Total

% of Total
Shares

A, Promoters

{17 Indlan

q) Individugi/HUF

b) Central Govt,

cjState Govlfs).

d) Bodies Corporales

4.956,502

4.956.507

4,956,502

99.95

) Bank/F

9925

f} Any other

SUB TOTAL{A} (1)

4,856,502

4,956,502

29.95

4,956,502

4,956,502

99.95

(2) Foreign

a} NRI- individuals

&) Other Indivicuals

<) Bodies Corp.

o) Banks/Fl

&) Any other

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter
[A)= (A)(V)+(A)2)

4,856,507

4,956,502

99.95

A4.956.502

4.956.502

79.95

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) InsHiullens

aj Mutuol Funds

t} Banks/fi

<} Central Govi.

&) Stede Govl{s)

) Venture Capital
Fundls

f} insurance Companies

o) Flis

h) Forgign Yenture
Capitat Funds

i} Others (specily)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

) Bodies corporates

i) Inclian

0.05

i} Overseos

b} Individuals

i} individuot shareholders
holding nominal shore
capital uplo Rs. lakh

ii) Ingividuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capiial in
excess of Rs. | lakh

<) Others ipecify)

SUB TOTAL (8)(2):

2,498

2,498

0.05

2,498

2498

Tolal Public
Shareholding
(B)= (BY(1)+(B}2)

2.498

2,498

2498

2,498

005

C. ShdrésHeld by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand fotal {(A+B+C)

4,959,000

1

4.959.000

4,959,000

4.859.000




{il} SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

$INo. Shoreholdars Home Shareholding at ihae Sharoholding af the
beginning of the yeor end of the year
No of shares % oltolal %o af sharos Ho of shares % oltolat | % of shares %
shares plodgod/ shares pledged; change
olthe encymberod ol the ancumbered | In share
company | 1o jolal shares company | to latul sheres | holding
dutlng
the vear
3 [fichmond Park Propeity 2.725.750 5496 5456 2,125,750 5456 8496 0
Managenmenl Services
Lirnileeed
DLF Cyber Cily
Developers Limited R
2 alongwith i nominees 2227502 4493 44.93] 2,227,502 44,93 4493 0
3 {Gullenia Property
Management 3,280 0.06 008 3.250 006 0806 o
Tolat 4,958,502 §9.95 79.%5 4,956,502 $9.95 99.95 1]

(1) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLENG { SPECIHFY IF THERE §5 NO CHAKGE)

SI. Share holding a! the Cumulalive Shere helding during the year
No, beginning of the Year
Ho. of Shares % oltotal No of thezos % of fotal shares ¢ithe
shares of lhe company
company
1 |Atthe beginning of the
year 4,956,502 99.95 4,956 502 99.95
Daole wise

increase/deceass in
Promoters Share holding
during the year There is no change in %oge of shargholding
specilying the recsons for
ncrecsefdecrease {e.g.

allolmeni/
transter/bonus/sweat
equity elc)
2 jAatihe end of he year - | - | 4,956,502 { 99,95

{Iv) Shareholding Pallern of tap len Shareholders (olher than Directors, fremoters & Heldars of GDRs & ADRs}

3l No Shareholding at the beginning] Cumulalive Sharehelding during the year
ofthe year
For Each of the Top 10 No.of shares % of fola No of shares ¥ of tolal shares of the
Sharehofders shares of {he company
company

1| Al the Beginning of the year

i Kirliman BuildersLtd, | 498 | 003 | 1ase | 0.03
i Ujegor Estale Limited | o0 T oo ] 1000 | 002
Dole wise increose/decrease in Share holding durng the year specilying Ihe reasons for
increose/decreose (£.9. ollotmenifiransfer/bonus/sweat equily elc.}

i Kifiman Buiiders tid. | il | il | Wil | il

i | Ujagar Estate Limiled | il | Hil ! N | il
At the end of the year{or on the date of seporation, if seporated during the year)

2

i Kirtiman Bufiders Utd, | . ] . | Lags 0.03

i Ujagar Estate Limited E - [ - 1 1.000 | 002

{v} Shareholding of Direclorn and Key Managericl Petsonnel:

Sl Ne Sharcholding athe beginning} Cumudalive Shareholding durlng the year
ofdhe year
for Lach of the Direclors | No.of shares % of fotal No of shares % of total shares of the
& kmp shares of the . <company
coempany.

1 |At the beginning of The . . . .
year hdil il il el
Dale wise
incresse/decrease in
Share holding during the . . 5

it it Nit 1]

year speciying the
tEOseNS for
increcse/decrease {e.q.
alletmenifironsterfbonus
/sweat equily elc)

2 |Althe end of the vear

il N Bl Bl




v INDEBTEDMESS

{InT)
indebledness of the Company Including lnterest oulstanding/accived bul net due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

excluding deposlts Loans Indebiedness
Indebtness af the beginning of the
flnancial year
i} Principat Amount 5.25.00,00,000 - - 5,25,00,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid -
ili} Interest accrued bul not due 1,72,45891 - - 1.72,45891
Total {i+l+ii} 5.26,72,45891 - - 5,26,772.458%1

i [

Change In Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition 15,67.807 - 15,67 807
Reduction -
Net Change 15.67,807 - - 15,67.507
indebtedness af the end of the
flnanclal year
i) Principal Amount 5,2500.00.000 - 5,25,00,00,000
i) Interest due but not paid -
iil) Interest accrued but net due 1.88,13,698 - - 1,68,13,698
Total (I+i+1l) 5,26,88,13,698 - - §,26,88,13,698

&~

vl REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A, Remuneratlon ic Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: NIl

Sl.No Partlcuiars of Remuneratlon

Kame of fhe MD/WID/Manager

Total Amount

1 Gross salary

{a] Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the iIncome Tax. 1941.

{b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2} of the
Income tax Act, 1941

¢} Profits in fieu of salary under section 17{3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock oplion R - R R
3 Sweat Equily - . R
4 Commission -
ash of protit B - - . .
others, specify
5 Others, please specify - - -

Total {A)

Celling as perthe Act




Remuneration to other directors:

{in %)

Sl.No

Partlculars of Remuneration

Name of the Birectors

Tetal Amount

Independent Diractors

Late Shii 1SV Ponduranga
Sarmea

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg

Mr. Surinder Singh
Chawla

[a} Fee for altending board/ commillee

meelings

200,000

2.80.000

60.000

5,40,000

{b) Commission

[c | Others, please specily

Total {3}

2,00,000

280,000

540,000

Other Non Executive Direclors

Mr. Raj Kumar Joln
{Nominee Director)

{a) Fee for altending
board/ commitlee mealings

140,000

1.40,000

{b} Commission

{c ) Othets, ploase specify.

Total (2)

1.40.000

140,000

Total (B)=(1+2)

480,000

Total Managerlal Remuneration

Overall Celling as per the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIl

Sl No.

Partlcuiars of Remuneratlon

Key Managesial Personnel

Gross Salary

CEQ

Company CFO
Secretary

Total

{a} Salary o5 per provisions contained in
section 17{1} of the Income Tax Acl, 1961,

{b) Value of perquisites ufs 17{2} of the
Income Tax Aci, 196}

(¢ ) Profils in lieu of salary under seclion 17{3)
of fhe Income Tax Acl, 1961

Stock Option

Swaeaf Equily

Commission
as% of profit
olhers, specily

Others, please specily

Total




Vil

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Secthion of the Brief Detalls of Authority Appeal made if any
Companies Description Penalty/ {RD/NCLT/Court) (give detalls)
Act Punishment/
Compounding
fees Imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil il Nil Ni
Punishment Nil Nil il Nil Nii
Compounding Nil Nil N Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil il N Nil
Punishment Nil Nit Nil M Nil
Compounding Nl Nij il Nif Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penaity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil N Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nit Nil Nil il Nil
For and on the behaif of Boord of Directors
DLF Emporio Limited
Anupam G W
Date: 05.08.2017 Director & Mdrger Director
Place: Gurugram DIN- 05234238 DIN- 03453%7 _
»

Vg



Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Chartered Ascountanis

Olfices in Bengalury, Chandigarh Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kolkala, Mumbal, New Delhi, Noida and Pune

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of DLF Emporio Limited

Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
L-41 Connaught Circus

New Delhi 110001

India

Repott on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DLF Emporio Limited (‘the
Company’), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fais view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS’) specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also inclides maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds. and other irregularities; selection and application of
approptiate accounting policies; making judpments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that wete operating effectively for ensuting the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a

‘true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

4.

Out tesponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisicns of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements
are free from matetial misstatement. : .

\Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered wilh limileg liability
with idenlificalion number AAC-2085 and its registered
office at L-41 Connaughl Circus, New Delhi, 110001, India

T+9111 42787670
F+91 11 4278 7071
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Chartared Accountaats

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that ate appropriate
in the citcumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on these financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of
affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2017, and its ptofit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash. flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9.

The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 and 31 Maich 2015 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) which we issued auditor’s reports to the shareholders of the Company dated
17 May 2016 and 15 May 2015 respectively. These financial statements have been adjusted for
the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS,
which have also been andited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this fatter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatoty Requitements

10. As requited by the Companies (Auditot’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Otrder’) issued by the

11.

Central Govetnment of India in tettms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A a statement on the matters specified in patagraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report

that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessaty for the putpose of cur audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;
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d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

€) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Boatd of Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of
the Company as on 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated
22 May 2017 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repost in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in Note 37 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position; -

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foteseeable losses;

jil. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. the Company, as detailed in Note 12.3 to the financial statements, has made requisite
disclosures in these financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified
Bank Notes (“SBN’s") during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016. Futther, as informed to us by the management, SBN’s aggregating to T 0.82
lakhs have been deposited by cettain vendor directly into the Bank account of the
Company. Based on the audit procedures petformed and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, these disclosures tead
together with footnote to Note 12.3, are in accordance with the books of account
maintained by the Company.

wltion (lomp dit. o ter
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Ca)
Chattered Accountants
Firm’s Registrajion No.: 001076N/N500013

pet Manish Agrawal
Partner
Membership No.: 507000

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2017

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure A to the Independent Auditot’s Report of even date to the members of DLF
Emporio Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures petformed for the putpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the notial
course of audit, and to the best of out knowledge and belief, we report that:

() a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
-ommpany ha prope g P g
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets comprising of property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

(b) The fixed assets comprising of property, plant and equipment and investment
property have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of vetification of the fixed assets comprising of property, plant and
equipment and investment property is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

{id) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i1) of the Order ate not applicable.

(1ir) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3{iii)(a), 3(iti)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186
of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning
of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of
Company’s services and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they
are accuraie or complete.

(vi) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees” state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a
few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.
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(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, ate as

follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of Natute of Amount (T Amount paid | Period to Forum where
the statute | dues in lakhs) under which the dispute is
Protest (X in | amount pending
lakhs) telates
Finance Service Tax | 767.07 NIL Financial year | Commissioner
Act, 1994 2007-08 to Service Tax,
2009-10 Delhi
Finance Service Tax | 60.70 NIL Financial year | Cotmmissioner
Act1994 2011-12 Service Tax,
Delhi
Income Tax | Income tax 1,231.82 NIL Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 year 2010-11 Appellate
Tribunal

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution ot 2 bank
ot government and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

(ix) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer ot further public offer
(including debt instruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix} of the Order are not applicable.

® No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(D) The Company has not paid or provided for any managetial remuneration. Accordingly,
the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

(xi)y  Tn out opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order ate not applicable.

(ziil)  In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shates or fully or partly convertible debentures.

()

In out opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or petsons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

Chartered Accountants
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(xvi)  The company is not requited to be registered undet Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s chisﬁ9n No.: 001076N/N500013

pet Manish Agrawal
Pattner
Membership No.: 507000

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2017

Chartered Accountants
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of DLF
Emporio Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s repott on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

L In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of DLF Empotio Limited (“the
Company”) as of and fot the year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company of as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chattered Accountants of India (TCAT’). These tesponsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as tequired under the Act.

Auditors® Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditng, issued by the ICAT and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
tequite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material tespects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of TFCoFR, assessing the risk that a matetial weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedutes selected depend on the auditot’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial sta tements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Repotting

6. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance tegarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR includes those
policies and procedutes that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in teasonable detail,
accurately and faidy reflect the teansactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to petmit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditutes of the Company are being made only in accordance with authossations of
management and directors of the Company; and {(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ot disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure B (o the Independeni Andizos’s Repott of even date to the members of DLF
Emporio Limited, on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Inhetent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occut and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future petiods are subject to the
risk that IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all matexial tespects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on internal control over financial reporting critetia
established by the Company consideting the essential components of internal control stated in
Guidance Note issued by ICAL

Lratisn cdcodiite Ulocor
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chattered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

pery:::i\sh Agrawal

Pattner
Membership No.: 507000

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 May 2017




DLF Emporio Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

(All amounts in ¥ Iakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment
Investment property
Tinancial assets

Investments

Loans

Other financial asscts
MNon-current tax asscts (net)
Qther non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Cuirent assets
Financial asscts
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other current assets
"Total current asscts
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics .
Borrowings
Other financial Habilites
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current linbilitics
‘Total non-current labilities

Current liabilities
Tinancial liabilities

Borrowing

I'rade payables

Other Enancial lizbilities
Other curcent liabilides
‘Total current lahilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

"I'ne accompanying notes form an intcgeal part of these financial statements

Place : Gurugram
Date : 22 May 2017

Hari Krishan Bansal
ChicF Financial Officer

Note

14.1
15

16
17
18

20
21
22
23

3

As at As at As at
31 Maxch 2017 31 March 2015 1 April 2015

0.05 016 10.10
38,500.89 39,273.67 40,098.03
21.31 17.46 2039
2,747.87 2,766.12 2,763.75
1,735.39 1,575.86 1,430.63
1,215.24 1,126.70 476.68

- 57.04 6677
44,220.75 44,817.01 44,866.35
376.95 32828 257.24
1,284.97 559.74 684.13
1,043.67 622.29 566.92
64,046.09 55,032.07 46,045.65
193.02 105.74 49.04
66,944,70 56,648.12 47,602.98.
111,£65.45 101,465.13 92,469.33
495.90 495.90 495.90
4947706 41,172.22 33,407.32
49,972.96 41,668.12 33,903.22
51,193.77 50,993.04 50,814.11
2,825.07 3,889.36 4,160.30
2,738.64 1,788.20 778.34
916.57 394.99 715.17
57,672.05 57,065.59 56,467.92
- 410 4.10

~ 570.00 144.49 59.89
2,347.90 1,990.93 1,394.14
602.54 591.90 040,06
3,520.44 2,731.42 2,098.19
111,165.45 101,465.13 92,469.33

Ryt

Rupa Agarwal
Company Secretary
M. No. A23376

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dinaz Madhukar Anupam )ﬂ@

Director  Director and Manager

DIN - 03453167

DIN - 05234238

This is the Balance Shect referred to in our report of even date

/\‘ For Wallkeer Chanéiok 8 éo LI%M

(formeriy Walker, Chandiok ¢ Ca)

Chartered Accoun

anish Agrawal
Partuer




DLF Empoario Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in ¥ fakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Note For year ended For year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Revenue
Revenue from operations 24 15,174.03 12,961.8Y
Otber incorme 25 7,827.81 6,908.46
Total income 23,001.84 19,870.35
Expenses
Finznce costs 26 6,463.88 6,462.10
Depreciation expense 27 7841 795.94
Other expenses 28 3,821.75 1,469.53
Total expenses 11,070.54 8,727.57
Profit before ti;.x 11,931.30 11,142.78
Tax expensc 29
Current tax 3,733.22 3,448.83
Dreferced tax eredit (103.80) [73.20)
Profit for the year 8,301.88 1,761.15
Other compreliensive income
1) Ttems that will not be reclassed to profit or loss
Fair valuation gain /{loss) of investment in equity instcument 3.85 2.93)
i) Income tax retaiing o iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {0.89) 0.68
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,304.84 7,764.90
Earnings per equity share ()
(Basic and diluted) 30 167.41 156.63
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Buard of Directors

Rupa Agarwal MAm}pa rma

Company Secretazy

Hari Krishan Bansal
Chief Financial Officer Director Director and Manager

M. No. A23376 DIN - 03453167 DIN - 05234238

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred (o in ocur report of even date

Ajml" or Mﬁ & %ndflmw

(fermery Walker, Chandiok ¢» Ca}

Chartered Account; /

pel Manish Agrawal

Partner

Place : Gurogeam
Date : 22 May 2017




DLF Emporio Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017
(A amonnes in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Macch 2017 31 March 2016
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 11,931.30 11,142,778
Adjustment for :
Interest expense 5,923.84 592415
Interest income (7,776.74) (6,898.40)
Amount forfeited on properties (19.02) (39.91)
Unclaimed balances written back 20.17 -
Depreciation cxpense 784.91 795.94
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (net) 24.77) 2.56
lFinancial liability measured at amortised cost (net) 2.14 3621
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,841.83 10,963.33
Adjustment for change in working capital :
(Increase) in trade receivables (48.67) (71.05)
Decrease/{increase} in financial and other assets 12.48 49.52)
Increase in trade payables 425.51 84.60
(Decrease)/increase in financial other liabilities (177.52) 4245
Cash flow from operations 11,053.63 10,969.81
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (2,768.40) (3,021.71)
Net cash flow from operating activitics ' 8,285.23 7,%48.10
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchasc of fixed assets (30.50) {27.20)
Unsecured loans given to related partics {8,250.00) (4,725.00)
Movement in restricted cash-fixed deposit (pledged) (148.84) (140.43)
Movement in fixed depesits (net) (421.38) (55.37)
Intecest received 7,002.33 2,629.80
Net cash used in investing activities (1,848.45) (2,318.20)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of preference share capital (410G} -
Interest paid {5,707.45) (5,754.29)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (5,711.55) (5,754.29)
Net.increase/ (decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents 7 725.23 (124.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 559.74 684.13
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12) 1,284.97 559.74

Figures in brackets represents cash outflow.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hari Krishan Bansal Eupn Agarwal inaz Madhukar M“}M’mﬂ

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Diirector Director & Manager

M. No. A23376 DIN - (03453167 DIN - 05234238

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Lialian Coomdite Ltotd

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok ¢ Co)

Char:j;:w/

per Manish Agrawal

Partner

Place : Gurugram
Date : 22 May 2017




DLF Emporio Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Al amounts in T fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B

A Equity share capital

Particulars Balance as at| Changein | Balance as at | Change in equity | Balance as at 31
1April 2015 | equity share | 31 Macch 2016 share capital March 2017
capital during during the year
the year
Equity shatc capital 495.90 - 495,90 - 495.9¢
B Other equity™
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other
comprehensive
income - reserve
Capital Securities Debenture |Retained Earnings | Equity Instruments Total
Redemption | Premium redemption through Other
Reserve Reserve reserve Comprehensive
Income

Balance as at 1 April 2015 - 4,455.00 1,504.11 27,441.72 6.49 33,407.32
Profit for the year - - - 116715 - 1,767.15
‘Total comprehensive income for - - - - (2.25) (2.25)
the year
'Transfer from/to retained - - 1,753.19 {1,753.19) - -
earnings
Balance as at 31 March 2016 - 4,455.00 3,257.30 33,455.68 4,24 41,172.22
Profit for the year - - - 8,301.88 - 8,301.88
Total comprehensive income for - - - - 2.96 296
the year
Transfer from/ to retained 410 - 1,748.40 (1,752.50) - -
catnings
Balance as at 31 March 2017 4.10 4,455.00 5,005.70 40,005.06 7.20 49,477.06
* Refer note 15 for details.

e et

Hari Krishan Bansal
Chief TFinancial Officer Company Secretary
M. No. A23376

Rupa Agarwal

For and on hehalf of the.Board of Directors

inaz Madhukar MUM&

Director
DIN - 03453167

Director and Manager

DIN - 05234238

Place : Gurugram
Date : 22 May 2017

This is the Statement of changes in cquity referred to in our repost of even date

1/@ etdleg~ M@C« Ledf
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(farmerly Walker, Chandiok & Cp)

Chartercd Accounfants

pet L\'lifly:h Agrawal

Partner




DLF Empotio Limited
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
Masch 2017

Corporate information
Nature of principal activities

DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company™) has constructed a Shopping mall-cum-entettainment complex named as
DLF Emporio, at Vasant KKunj, consisting of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not
limited to eateries, convention hall, indoor games coutt, food coutt, restaurants etc. and basement for parking and
othet spaces etc. and further leases it to intending tenants.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministty of Cotporate Affaits (MCA?). The Company has
uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

These financial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first which the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP),
which have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting ptinciples adopted by the Company on transition to
Ind AS. For the purpose of compatatives, financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and opening
balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 are prepared under Ind AS.

The financial statements are ptesented in Indian Rupee (INR’) which is also the functional and presentation
curtency of the Company.

The financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2017 wete authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 22 May 2017.

Recent accountin g pronounceme nt

In March 2017, the Ministty of Cotporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’ and Ind AS 102, Shate-
based payment.” The amendments are applicable to the Company from 1 April 2017.

Amendment to Ind AS 7

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activites, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the cpening and closing balances in the balance
sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure tequirement. The Company is evaluating
the requirements of the amendment and its impact on the financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Overall consideration
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases

summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except whete the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.




b)

d)

DLF Emporio Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2017

Bavis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with accounting principles
genetally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measuted at fair values as explained in relevant accounting
policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1, level 2 and
level 3 based on the degtee to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

Cuttent versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-curtent as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cutrent
asscts and non-current liabilities, as the case may be.

Revenue recognition

Revenue arises from the sale of goods and the tendering of services, Revenue is tecognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received/receivable net of rebate, taxes etc. The Company applies the revenue
recognition critetia to each nature of revetiue (ransaction as set out below.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income
which is recognised when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected

inflationary costs. Parking income and fit out rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on accrual
basis.

Service income

Revenue in respect of maintenance services is tecognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the
tespective contract.

Lnterest incorme

Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest from
customets is accounted for on accrual basis except in case whete ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

Advertisement incorve
Advertisement/promotional incomne is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreement,

Uity servives
lncome from utilities services provided to tenants’ specific usage is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with
the terms of the agreement.

Bortowing costs

Bottowing costs directly atttibutable to the acquisition, construction o production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized duting the period of time that is necessary to complete and ptepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial petiod of time to get ready for its intended use,
Capitalisation of botrowing costs is suspended in the petiod duting which the active development is delayed due

to, othet than temporaty, interruption. Al other botrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.




DLF Emporio Lirited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2017

Propetty, plant and cquipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, The cost comptises purchase price,
botrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its wotking
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates atc deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a sepatate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that Ruture economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incutred.

Subsecnent measnrement (depreciation and useful fives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of
useful lives {as set out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013

Asset category ‘ Estimated useful life (in years)

Office equipment ' 5

The resicual values, useful lives and method of deprectation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is detecognised.

Transition to Ind AS - :

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the cattying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the provisions of Previous GAAP and use that catrying
value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

Investment propetties

Recognition and initial measursment

Investment propertics are propetties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, ot both. Investment properties

ate measured initially at their cost of acquisiion. The cost comprises purchase ptice, borrowing cost if
capitalization critetia are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any teade discountand rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or tecognised as a separate asset, as apptoptiate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recoghised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Stubsequent measucement (depreciation and ussful lives)

Depreciation on invesunent properties is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful
lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category - | ‘ Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings ©60 '
Plant and equipments 15

The residual values, useful lives and method of depieciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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De-recognition

Investment propetties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of de-
recognition.. ~

Transition to Ind AS

On transitfon to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its investment
propettes recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the provisions of Previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

Opérating leases
Company as a lessee
Assets acquired on leases where a sipnificant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straightline basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

. '

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
Rental income is recognized on straightline basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent
cotnpensates the Comnpany with expected inflationary costs.

Impaitment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/extetnal factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its catrying amount, the cartying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the
reduction is treated as an impaitment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting
date thete is an indication that a pteviously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are
accotdingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Tnitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets ace recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

i. Financial insttuments at amottised cost — the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost if
both the following conditions are met:

¢ ‘The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, :
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

ji.  Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL). For all othet equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCIL) ot fair value through profit and loss (FVEIPL). The
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

De-recognition of financial assels
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the tights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initia! recopnition and nreayurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial Labilities is also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amottised cost.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest -
method.

De-recognition of financial Fabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the tetms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilides are offset and the net amount is repotted in the balance shect if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilides simultaneously.

Impaitment of financial assets

In accordauice with Ind AS 109, the Company applies eipected credit loss (ECL)'model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. :

15CL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
conttact and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
is tequited to consider —

e All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life
of the assets.

s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
conttactual terms. )

Trude receivables

‘The Company applics approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of receivables.
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Otber financial assety

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased
significantly, impairment loss is provided.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of defetred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income ot ditectly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the rax payable in tespect of taxable ihcome for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recoghised outside profit or loss is
recogniced outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between catrying amount of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on

unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against

future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of futute operating results, adjusted for

significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become

probable that future taxable profits will allow the defetted tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Delerred tax relating to itemns recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside statement of profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax (MAT?) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
In the yeat in which such credit becomes eligible to be recognizéd as an asset, the said asset is created by way-of a
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at cach
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably
certain that the Company will pay normal income tax duting the specified period,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/cotpotations and short-term highly
liquid investments (otiginal matutity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in vahue.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
teporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the time value of money is matetial.

Contingent liability is disclosed for: .

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or ‘

* Present obligations atising from past cvents where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is
disclosed.
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Earnings per share

Basic earninps pet share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
duting the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eatnings per shate, the net profit ot loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis and liabilittes, and the related
disclosures. ‘

Stgnificant management judgenienty

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for vatious assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including,
but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and
estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of
present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased
assef.

Recoverability of advances/teceivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guatantees. However the
actval future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimater

Useful lives of depreciable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each teporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are-not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would ptice the instrument.

Valuation of investment property — The determination of the fait value of investment properties requires the use
of estimates such as future cash flows from the assets (such as lettings and futute revenue streams) and discount

rates applicable to those assets. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.
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4 Property, plant and equipment
"T'he changes in the carrying valuc of property, plant and cquipment for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 arc as follows :

Office equipments Total
Gross block
As at 1 April 2015 10.10 10.10
Additions - -
Disposals/adjustment - -
As ac 31 March 2016 10.10 10.10
As at T April 2016 10.10 10.10
Additions - -
Disposals/adjustment * (2.26) (2.26)
As ac 31 March 2017 7.84 7.84
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2015 - -
Charge for the year 9.94 9.94
Disposals / adjustment - -
As at 31 March 2016 2.94 9.94
As at1 April 2016 9.94 9.94
Charge for the year 0.10 0.10
Disposals/adjustment * (2.26) (2.26)
As at 31 March 2017 7.7% 7.7%
Net block
Asat 1 Aprl 2015 ’ 10,10 10.10
As at 31 March 2016 0.16 0.16
As at 31 March 2017 0.05 0.05

* Tigures in disposals/adjustments column tepresents adjustments on account of amounts written back apainst liabilities towatds creditors for capital goods.

(i) Contractual obligations

The company does not have any contractual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and cquipment.

(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost
‘The Company has not capitalised any borrowing cost duting the year ended 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015.

(iii) Deemed cost of propesty, plant and equipment as on 1 April 2015

Description Gross block Accum‘_'l"]jted Net block
depreciation

Office equipments 32.38 22,28 10.10

‘Total 32.38 22.28 10.10
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5 Investment property

The changes in the cazrying value of investment properties for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows :

Freehold land Buildings Plant and equipments Total
Gross block
As ac 1 April 2015 18,477.14 17,499.20 4,121.69 40,098.03
Additions - - - -
Disposals/adjustment * - (38.37) - (38.37)
As at 31 March 2016 18,477.14 17,460.83 4,121.69 40,059.66
As at 1 April 2016 1847714 17,460.83 4,121.69 40,059.66
Additions - - 30,56 30.56
Disposals/adjustment * - {15.95) {0.31) (16.26)
As at 31 March 2017 18,477.14 17,444.88 4,151.94 40,073.96
Accumulated depreciation
As at1 April 2015 - - - -
Chasge for the year - 323.54 467.08 790.62
Disposals / adjustment * - {4.62) - (4.62)
As at 31 March 2016 - 318.92 467.08 786.00
As ar1 April 2016 - 318.92 467.08 786.00
Charge for the year - 321.59 465.76 787.36
Disposals/adjustrment * - (0.26) (0.02) ' {0.28)
As at 31 March 2017 - 640.25 932,82 1,573.07
Net block
As at 1 Apnl 2015 18,477.14 17,499.20 4,121.69 40,098.03
As at 31 March 2016 18,477.14 17,141.91 3,654.61 39,273.67
As at 31 March 2017 18,477.14 16,804.63 3,219.12 38,500.89

* Figurcs in disposals/adjustments column represents adjustments on account of amounts written back against fabilities towards creditors for capital gaods.

(i) Contractual obligations

The company does not have any contractual commitments for acquisition of investment property.

(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost

"The Company has not capitalised any borrowing cost during the year ended 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015,

(iii) Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment properties

Particulars 31March 2017 31 March 2016
Rental income 12,227.65 12,178.46
Direct operating expenses that generated rental income 2.50 175.32
Direct operating expenses that did not gencrated rental income - -
Profi¢ from leasing of investment properties before depreciation 12,207.15 12,003.14
Depreciation cxpense 187.01 786.00
Profit from leasing of investment properties after depreciation 11,420.08 11,217 .14

(iv) Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to temants under long-term operating leases with rentals payable monthly, The company has given building and related
equipment on lease. The Company has entered into non- cancellable lease agreements with the tenants to whom it has leased out shops in Emporio Mall. The details of
futuee minimum lease rentals receivable under operating lease for each of the following periods as on 31 March 2017 are mentioned below:

31 March 2017| 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Upto one year 6,551.67 17,7411 7,320.15

'Two to five years . 1,107.16 1,176.50 2,804.43
More than five yeats -

'Total 7,658.83 8,924.41 10,124.58
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(¥) Fair value

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 | 1April 2015
Fair value 133,500.00 149,580.00 112,990.00

“I'he fair value of investment property has been determined by external, mdependenc property valuers, having appropmatc recopnised professional qualification and recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment propertes at least annually. The
best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties and thesc fair value measurements are categorised as level 3 measurement in the fair
value hierarchy.

For constructed propoerties, the valuation has been taken as an average of the values atrived using the following methodologies —

(i) Discounted cash Alow methad — nct present value is determined based on projected cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate

{ii) Sales comparable method — this method compares the price or price per unit area of similar propertics being sold in the marketplace

However for valuation of March 2017, fair valuation has been determined based on income projections and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of market
evidence.

(vi) Deemed cost of investment property as on 1 April 2015

Description Gross block AccumPIa.ted Net block
depreciation

Freehold land 18,477.14 - 18,477.14

Buildings 20,296.95 299775 17,499.20

Plant and equipments 5,266.07 1,144.38 4,121.69

‘Total 44,040.16 3,942.13 40,098.03

(This space bas beot infentionally lefi blank)
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6 Investments - non current
In equity instcuments (unquoted)*
In Others

DLF Utilities Limited (120,000 equity shares (31
March 2016 - 120,000, 1 April 2015 - ¥ 120,000) of T 10
each fully paid up)

(Refer nate 43}

As at As at As at,
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
21.31 1746 20.39
2131 17.46 20.39

*Investments is measured at fair value theough other comprehensive income (FVOCT), No dividends have been received from such investments during the year.

Apgpregate amount of unquoted investments

Agpregate amount of impairment in value of investments

7 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due from related parties
DL’ Emporio Restaurants Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited
Security deposits to related party
Security deposits - others
Other loans

8 Other financial assets

Deposits with original maturity more than 12 months*

* pledged with debenture tastee

9 Current tax assets (net)

Income tax paid (net of provision}

10 Other assets
Balance with statutory authoridies

Prepaid cxpenses

2131 1746 20.39
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015 31 Macch 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Non-current Non-corrent Non-current Current Current Curtent
2,621.75 2,621.75 2,621.75 31854 318.54 318.54
- - - 63,727.25 54,713.53 45,727.11
- 18.25 15.88 - - -
126.12 126.12 126.12 - - -
- - - Q.30 - -
2,747.87 2,766,12 2,763.75 64,046.09 55,032.07 46,045.65
1,735.39 1,575.86 1,430.563 - - -
1,735.3% 1,575.80 1,430.63 - - -
1,215.24 1,126.70 476.68 - - -
1,215.24 1,126.70 476.68 - - -
- - - 129.65 82.88 3932
- 57.04 66.77 63.37 2286 972
- 57.04 66.77 193.02 105.74 49.04

(This space has been intentionally kft blank)
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1

12

12.1

12.2

12,3

13

Trade receivables
Related Parties
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Others
Secured, considered good
Unsecured

- Considered good

- Considered doubtful

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
In current account (refer note 12.1)

In escrow account (refer note 12.2)

Bank deposits with original maturity less than 3 months -

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

58.29 97.47 33.68

26.19 1.14 -

282.96 208.56 217.17

9.51 21.11 6.39

14,02 14,02 14.02

390.97 342.30 271.26
(14.02) (14.02) (14.02)

376,95 328.28 257.24

2.1 59.23 38.97
1,252.86 500.51 642.24

- 292

1,284.97 559,74 684.13

Cheque issued from current account over and above the bank balance has been adjusted apainst auto sweep FDR.

¥ 1,252.86 lakhs (31 March 2016 ¥ 500.51 lakhs and 1 April 2015 ¥ 642.24 Jakhs) representing deposits, held by the eatity that ase not available for
use by the Company, as these are pledged with the banks to fulfill the collateral requirements of borrowings taken by the Company.

Information pursuant to G.S.R. 308(T3) dated 30 March 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs:

Particulars

SBNs

Other denomination
notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016*
Add: Permitted receipts

Less: Permitted payments

Less: Amount deposited in Banks

Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016

.45
.37

0.82

0.00
27.65
26.81

0.85

045
28.02
27.63

0.85

The Company, on its own, docs not maintained cash, however, it has entered into an arrangement with a vendor for collection and deposit of
cash, collected on behalf of the Company in connection with car parking revenue, details of which have been disclosed above. SBN's agprepating
T 0.82 lakhs were deposited by the vendor directly into the Company's bank account

* Other denomination notes amounting to € 480, rounded off to ¥ in lakh.

Other bank balances

Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less

than 12 months*

1,043.67

62229

566,92

1,043.67

622.29

566.92

* Cheque issued from current account over and above the bank balance has been adjusted against auto sweep FDR.

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 Masch 2016 1 Apnil 2015
No of shates Amount No of shares  Amount No of shares Amount

14 Share capital
14.1 Equity share capital
(a) Authotised equity share capital
Equity shares of X 10 cach 4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495.90
4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495,90 4,959,000 495,90

(b) Isswed, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of T 10 each 4,959,600 495.90 4,959,000 465.90 4,959,000 495,90
i 4,959,000 495,90 4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495,90

(i) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

At the béginning of the yeac 4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495,90 4,959,000 495.90
Issued during the year - - - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 4,959,000 495,90 4,959,000 495.90 4,959,000 495,90

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to various classes of shares

The Company has only ene class of equity shares having a face value of T 10 per share, Each holder of equity shatc is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity sharcs will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shaces held by the sharcholders.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shareholding in the Company

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
No of shares % holding No ofshares % holding No of shares % holding
Name of the sharcholder
Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited, 2,725,750 54.96% 2,725,750 54.96% 2,725,750 54.96%
holding company .
DLF Cyber City Developer Limited (to whom the 2,227,502 44.92% 2,227,502 44.92% 2,227,502 44,92%

Company is an associate) and its nominees

(iv) The Company has not issued any equity shares issued purstiant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotred as fully paid up by way of
bonus issues and brought back during the last five years.

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
No ofshares Amount No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
14.2 Preference share capital
(a) Awuthorised preference share capital

12% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100 0.10 100 0.10 100 0.10
100 each
9% non cumulative redcemable preference shares of T 4000 4.00 4000 4.00 4000 4.00
100 each

4,100 4.10 4,100 4£.10 4,100 4.10

{b) Issued, subscribed and paid up

12% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of T - - 100 0.10 10¢ 0.10
100 each
9% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ - - 4000 4.00 4000 4.00
100 each

4.10 4,100 410
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Reconciliation of number of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

At the beginning of the year 4,100 2410 4,100 4.10 4,100 4.10
Redeemed during the yecar (4,100) (4.10) - - - -
- - 4,100 4.10 4,100 4,10

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Righis, prefeicnces and restrictions attached to various classes of shares

12% Non cumnidtive redeemable preference shares of * 100 each . )
The prefereace shares shall caery a fixed non-cumulative dividend of 12% p.a. and shall be redeemzble at par on or before 20 years from the daic of allotment
{i.2.12 December 2002) but not later than 11 Decemnber 2022, These preference shares were redeemed on 26 August 2616

9% Non cumulative redecmable preference shares of.’ 100 each
The preference shates shall carry & fixed non .cumulative dividend of 9% p.a. and sball be redeemable at pac on or before 20 years fiom the date of allotment (j.c.

50 Tanuary 2004} but not lter than 29 January 2024. These preference shares were redeemed an 26 August 2016,

Details of sharchnlders helding smore than 5% shareholding in the Company

As at As at As a
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Name of the shareholder No of shares % holding 'No of shares % holding ~ No of shares % holding
12% Non cumulative redecmable preference ghares
Kictimaan Builders Limited - - 100 100% 100 100%
9% Non Cumulative redeemable preference shares
Kirtimaan Builders Limited - - 4,000 100% 4,000 100%
Ocher equity
As at Ay at As at
31 March 2017 31March 2016 1 April 2015

Capital Redemption Reserve 410 - -
Securties Premium Reserve 4,455,00 4.455.00 4,455.00
TNetained Earnings 40,005.06 33,455.68 27,441.72
Debenture redemption reserve 5,005.70 3,257.30 1,504.11
Fiquity Tnstruments through Other Comprchensive income 720 4.24 6.49

' 49,477.06 41,172.22 33,407.32

Nature andl purpose of other reserves

Capital redemption reserve ‘
"The amount of money that the Company must keep when it buys back shares and which it cannat pay to shaceholders as dividends: The capital redemiption

reserve is a non-distributable reserve.

Sccurities premium reserve
Sccurities premium reserve represents premium received on issuc of shares, The rescrve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Debenture redemption rescrve
The Gompany is tequired to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of

debentures.

Retained earnings
All the profits made by the Company aze transterred to retained earnings from suztement of profit and loss.

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income repzesents balance arising on account of grin/{loss) booked on fair valuation of equity instcument.

(This space bas boen intentionally left blenk}




DLF Entporio Limited

Suncuiary of signi

~

and other

1;
-9 3

(Al umounts in ¥ Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

16

16.1
(i)
(i)
Giii)
(iv)
162
G}
o
il
(iv)
16.3

(i)

(i)
(i)
(iv)

17

18

Borrowings - non current
Secured

Non convertible debentures

Repayment terms and security di for the

ory information for the year ended 31 March 2017

As at Asat Aeat
31 March 2017 31 Masch 2015 1 April 2015
51,193.77 50,923.04 50.814.11
EL,193.77 60,993.04 50,814,11

Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non Cenvertible Debentures of T 10 fakhs each referred above to the extent of :-

151,193,977 Yakhs ace sccured by way of fiest pan passu charge on the immovable property situated ar New Delhi, Coupon rate of these debenlures is 10.90% . The final redemption date is
21 November 2021 and daie of redemption ( based on early redemption date) is Iatest by 21 November 2019 Pledge over the sharcholding of the issuer company along with charge

over debt seevice reserve account in favour of debenture trustees.

Charge on teceivables pertaining to the aforesaid immavable property vwned by the Compary.

Pledge aver the sharcholding of Company
Refer note 8 for fised deposits pledged with debenture trustees.

Repzymens terms and security disclosure for the owtstanding long term bory

ings ( excl

Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non Convertible Dehentures of 210 lakhs cach seferred dbove to the extent of -

¥ 51,993.04 lakhs are sccured by way of first pari passu chazge on the i

property si

ding long term homowings ( exclading current moturities ) as on 31 March 2017

mauritics } as on 31 March 2016 :

d at New Delhi, Coupon rate of these debentuies is 10.90% . The final redeinprion dare is

21 November 202t and date of redemption ( based on carly redempsion date) i latest by 21 November 2019. Pledpe over the sharcholding of the issuer company slong with charee

over clebt service reserve account in favour of debenture toustees.

Charge on receivables pedaining ko the aforesaid immovable property owned by the Company.

Pledge over the shaccholding of Compay.
Refer note 8 for fixed deposits pledged with debenture trustees.

Repayment terms and security disclosure for the outstanding fong term berrowings { excluding current maturities ) as on 1 April 2015 :

Listed, Sccured, Redeemable, INon Convertible Debentures of ¥ 10 faklis each refcsred above to the extent of :-

T 50,814.11 Iakhs ave secured by way of first pari passu charge on the immovable property situated at New Delhi, Coupon eate of these debentutes is 10.90% . The final redemption date is
21 November 2021 and date of sedemption ( based on early redemption date} is latest by 21 November 2019, Pledge over the sharcholding of the issuer company along with charge

" over debt service teserve account in favour of debienture teustees.

Chatge on reccivables pertaiming to - the aforesaid immovable property owned by the Compahy.

Pledge over the shateholding of Company.
Refer note B for fixed deposits pledged with debentuce trustees.

As ar As at As ag
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Other financial liabilities - non-current
Sccurity deposit from tenants 2,823.07 3,889.06 4,160.30
2,823.07 3,689.36 4,160.30
Deferred tax habilities (net)
Defeered tax liabilitics afsing on account of :
Deduction claimed under section 24(b) of the Income tax Act, 1961 2,697.67 2,809.51 286008
Tipact on financial liability at amorbsed cost 38.73 39.46 52.00
Tmpact on financial assess ar FVOCT 2.1 1.23 190
Impact on financial assers at amortised cost 0.13 - -
2,738.64 2,850.4) 2922.98
Deferred tas assels avising on account of :
Impact on financial assets at amostised cost (B.44} {7.55)
- (8.44) {7.55)
Minimum alternate tax credic - (1,053.36) (2,§37.09)
_ 2,738.¢4 1,788.20 778.34
Movement in deferred 1ax assets during year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 -
Particulars 31 March 2016 Recognised in profit | Recognised in other 31 March 2017
and loss compreheusive income
Assers
Investment property 2,H09.31 (111,64 - 2,691.67
Loans ®.44) 857 - 0.13
Investments 1.23 - 0.89 AL
Liabilities
Other financial liabikitics 39.46 ©.74) 7
2,841.56 (103.50) 0.30 Z.738.64
Miniomum alternate iax credic (1,053.36) 1,053.36 -
Total 1,788.20 949,55 0.89 2,738.64
Particulars 1 Aoril 2625 Recognited in profit | Recogrised in other 31 March 2016
and luss comprehensive income
Assets .
Investment properry 2,862.08 (59.78) - Z,809.31
Loans (7.55) (0.89) - (B.44)
[nvestments 196 - {.68) 1.23
Linbilities
Other Bnancial liabikities 5200 (12.5%) - 3946
251543 GED 10.68) 2,841.56
Minimum alternare tax ceecit {2,137.09) 1,083.74 - (1,051.36)
Total 778.34 i,010.54 (0.68) 1,788,20
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As at As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Other non-current liabilites
Deferred Income - ) 916.57 394,99 517
' 91657 394.99 715.17
Borrowings -current
12% Non cumulative redeemable prefercnce shares (Refer note 14.2 for detailsy* - 0.10 0.10
9% Non cumulative redeermable preference shaves (Refer note 14.2 for detailsy* ) - 4.00 4.00
- 410 4.10
Trade payables - current
Due to micto entecprises and small enterprises (refer note 34) - - -
Due to others ' ' 570.00 144.49 59.89
570.00 144.49 59.89
Other financial liabilities - curtent
Registration charges payable ' 4.34 26.53 27.62
Interest accrued on borrowings 188.14 172.46 188.14
Security deposits from tenants’ 2,155.42 1,753.33 1,074.20
Creditors for fixed assets - 38.61 104.18
2,347.90 1,990.93 1,394.14
Other current Liabilities
Advance from customers 114.04 57.90 61.75
Statutory dues 41.34 10.77 -
Deferred income 44716 52323 578.31
602.54 591,90 640.06

(Vs space las been intentionally Jeft biank)
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
24 Revenue from operations
Operating revenue
Rental income* 12,227.65 12,178.46
Service income 2,075.21 516.13
Other operating revenue
Parking income 132.64 -
Income From promotion and adverlisement activities 119.51 22730
Amount forfeited on propestics 19.02 39.91
15,174.03 12,961.89
* 'his inclhides ¥ 521.45 lakhs (provious yeas T 522,20 lakhs) on account of financial liability (security deposits) measured at amortised cast.
25 Other income
Iaterest income on
" Dank deposits 19920 167.06
Loaos 7,577.54 6,72897
Financial asset measured at amortised cose - 237
Qthers 362 3.60
Gain on pre settlement of financial asset 24,77 -
Unclaimed balance written back 20,17 -
Misceltaneous income 2.51 646
7,827.81 6,908.46
26 Pinance costs
Interest expensc on :
TDicbentures 5,923.22 5917.11
Prefercnce shares 0.63 0.45
Financial liability measured at amortised cast 51276 537.87
Delayed statutory payments 27.20 6.50
Guarantee and bank charges 0.07 0.08
6,463.88 6,462.10
27 Depreciation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equip and i propeiy 784.91 795.94
784.91 795.94
28 Other expenses
Rates and taxcs 20.05 18.51
Eleclricity, fuel and water 993.52 521.06
Advertisement and publicicy 498.58 307.18
Repair and maintenance - building 16.72 161.12
Tepair and maintenance - others 119.56 -
Commission and brokerage 37 14.20
Facility maintenance expenses 1,383.73 -
Heating, ventilation and airconditioning 428.46 -
Legal and professional fees (teler note 28.1) 49,38 7275
Donation for corporate social responsibility 194.00 1.00
Director's siting fees 683 4,81
Direcior’s travelling expenscs 0.51 022
Business support charges 88.66 14792
Staif welface expenses 0.52 016
Loss on pre settlement of financial Rability 10.83 20.54
Miscellancous expenses 6.63 0.05
382175 1,469.53
28.1 Payment to andicor*
As anditor
Audit fees 9.00 8.50
Tax audit fecs 0.08 0.50
Other services 200 1.00
Reimbursement of expenses 1.00 0.90
12.68 10.90

*pxehusive of applicable taces
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 3t March 2016
29 Tax expense
Curtent tax ' T 3,733.23 3,448.83
Defecred tax credit (103.80) (73.20)
3,629.43 3,375.63

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of 34.608%

and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 Macch 2016
Accounting profit before income tax 11,931.30 11,142.78
At country's statutory income tax rate of 34.608% (31 March 2016: 34.608%) 4,129.18 3,856.29
Adjustments

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 730.55 781.15
Standard deduction under income from house property (1,215.88) (1,213.02)
Difference due to change in tax rate - 5247
Brought forward losses adjusted and lapsed » - (78.70)
Others (14.42) {22.26)
Total adjustment (499.75) (480.66)
Income tax expenses recognised in the books 3,629.43 3,375.63

30 Earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders 8,301.88 7,767.15
Weighted average number of equity shates outstanding {in no.s) - 4,959,000 4,959,000
Norminal value of equity share (%) 10 10
Farnings per cquity share (%) . 167.41 156.63

(Basic and diluted)
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31 Fair value disclosures

i) Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial Eabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position arc prouped into three Levels of a fair value hieracchy. The three levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level Iz quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2; The fair value of financial instraments that ace not traded in an active macket is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable marker
data rely as litte as possible on entity specific estimates,
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
i} Financial asscts and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
31 March 2017 Levell Level 2 Level 3 Toral
Financial assets
Investments at FVOCI

Investment in equity shares - - 21.31 21.31
Total ’ - - 2131 2.3
31 March 2016 Level L Level 2 Leveld Total

Financial assets
Investmenta at FVOCI

Tovestment in equity sharcs ) - - 17.46 17.46
Total - - 17.46 17.46
1 April 2015 . Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial asscts

Invesiments at FYOC1
Investment in cquity shares - - 20.39 2039
Total - - 20,39 20.39

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Fair value of investment in equity shares have been determined based on discounted cash flow method (income approach)

(iv} The significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are discount mies and long teem prowth rate. The canrying value of investment in DLIY Utilities
Limited is low and hence, 0.5% perceatage chaage ia the unobservable inputs used in the fair valuation of level 3 assets does not have a significant impact on carrying value. .

{v) The following table presents the changes in level 3 items lor the periods ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016:

Particulars Amount

As at 1 April 2015 20.39

Loss recognised in other comprehensive income (2.93)
An at 31 March 2016 17.46

Gain recopnised in other comprehensive income 3.85

As at 31 March 2017 ' 21.31

(vi) Fair valuc of instcuments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measared at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows:

Pacticulars Level 3.1 March 20_17 31 March 2016 i 1 April 2015

) Carrying Fais value Carrying value Fair value Carrying Fair value
Financial assets
Loans Level 3 262175 2,621.75 2,621.75 2,621.75 2,621.75 262175
Security deposits Level 3 126.12 126.12 14437 154.66 142.00 150.06
Other financial agsets Level 3 1,735.39 1,735.39 1,575.86 1,575.86 1,430.63 1,430.63
‘Total (inancial assets 4,483.26 4,483.26 4,341.98 4,352.27 4,194.38 4,202.44
Financial liabilities
Bortrowings Tevel 3 51,193.77 51,193.77 50,903.04 50,993.04 50,814.11 50,814.11
Other financial liabilitics Level 3 2,823.07 2,886.89 3,889.36 3,945.67 4,160.30 4,261.09
‘Total financial liabilitica 54,016.84 54,080.66 54,882.40 54,938.71 54,974.41 55,075.20

"Ihe above disclosures is presented for non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities. The carrying values of current financial assets {irade receivables, cash and
cash cquivalents and other bank balances) and cument financial liabilides (borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities} are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair valuc.

The non-convertible redeemable debenture issucd by the Company are listed on stock exchange and thece is no compacable instrumeat having the similac teems and conditions
with related security being pledged and hence the carrying value of the debentures represents the best estioate of fair value.
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Fi ial risk management
Financial instr by category
For amontised cost instruments, carryinge value represents the best estimate of fic value.

- 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FvOCI Amortised

cost cost

Financial assets
Investments - 2131 - - 17.46 - - 2039 -
accrued and excludiog - - 66,667.83 - - 57,653.82 - - 48,667 40
security depusit)
Trade receivables - - 376.95 - - 328.28 - - 257.24
Security deposit - - 126.12 - - 144.37 - - 142,00
Cash and equivalents - - 1,284.97 - - 559.74 - - 634.13
Pixed deposit (including - - 2,779.06 - - 2,198.15 - - 1,997.55
interest)
Tatal - 2131 | | 71,234.93 - 17.46 60,884.36 - 20,39 51,748.32
Financial liabilities
Borrowings including interd - - 51,381.90 - - 51,169.60 - - 51,006.35
Trade payable - ’ - 570.00 - - 144.49 . - g 59.89
Sccurity deposis - - 4,978.48 - - 5,642.69 - - 5,234.51
QOther financial tiabilities - - 4.34 - - 65,14 - - 131 80
Total - - 36,934.72 - - 57,021.92 - - 56,432.55
Rick Managemnent

"The Company's activities expose it to market sk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of dicectors has overll responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framewark, This notc explains the sources of nsk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the
financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to dischacge its obligation to the Compaay. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents,
wrade toceivables and Fnancial asscts mensured at amortised cost. The Company conbinucusly monitors defaults of customers and other countcrparties and incorporates this
information into its credit risk contzols Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifyingg bank
deposits. Ocher financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances t© employees, scourity deposits and others. Credit risk related to thesc other financial assets is
manaped by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal contral system in place ensuze the amounts are within defined limits.

Credit sl management

Credit risk rating

The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assum ptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date

B: Modermte credit sisk

C: High credit risk

"The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following;

Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision lor expenses credit loss
Low credit nsk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investrents, loans, trade 12 month expected credit boss/life time expected credie
reccivables and other fnancial assets loss
- |Modcrate credit risk Financial assets . Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected
credit loss
High credit risk Financial assets Life ime expected credhit Joss

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, # default on a financial asset is considesed when the counter party fails 10 make payments within the agreed time
perind as per conteact, Loss rates refiecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and consideting differences beiween carrent and historical economic conditions.

Assets under credit risk —

Credit rating ’ Particularg 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

A: Low credit risk Cash and cash equivatents, other bank balances, investments, loans, teade receivables and acher T1,256.25 60,901.82 51,768.71
B: Moderate credit risk Financial assels

C: High credit risk "T'eade recervables 14.02 14.02 14.02
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b) Credir rsk exposure
Provigion for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on lifetime expected credit loss mechanism for loans an

31 Maxch 2017

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount at default

Expected credit
losses

Catrying amount net of impairment
provision

d advances, deposits and other investments —

I[nvestment at amortiscd cost 211 - 21.31
Cash and cash cquivaleats 1,284.97 - 1,284.97
Fixed deposits (including interest) 2,779.06 - 297906
Loans {excluding security deposit) 66,667 83 - 66,667.83
Security deposit 12612 - 12612
31 March 2016
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying t net of impan
carrying amount at default losses pravision
Invesement at amortised cost 17.46 - 1746
Cash and cash equivalents 559.74 - 559.74
Fixed deposits (including interest) 2,198.15 - 2,198.15
Loans (excluding security deposit) 57,653.82 - 57,653.82
Security deposit 144.37 - 14437
1 April 2015
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount at default “losses provision
Tnwestment at amortised cost 2039 - 20.39
Cash and cash cquivalents 684.13 - 684 13
Fixed deposits {including interest) 1,997.55 - 1,997.55
Loans (excluding security deposit) 48,667.40 - 48,667.40
Securily deposit 142.00 - 142.00

Tn respeet of trade seceivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime cxpected credit loss. Given the nature of business operations, the Company’s trade
receivables has tow credit risk as the Company holds security deposits equivalents ranging from three to six months rentals. Further historical trends indicate any
shoetfall beeween such deposits held by the Company and amounts duc from customers have been negligible

B

~—

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and markemble securitics and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet obligations when duc. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaning availability
under commitied Gacilitics.

Management monitors rolling forccasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of cxpected cash flows. The Company takes
into account the liquidity of the macket in which the cntity operates. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to mect these, monitozing balance shect liquidity ratios against internal and extemnal regulatory requirements and
maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities . .
"The tables below analyse the company's financial liabilitics into relevant maturity companying's based on their contractanl maturities for all non-dedvative financial
Jjabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contmctual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months cqual their cartying balances as the smpact of
discounting is not sigaificant

31 March 2017

Less than 1 1-5 year More than 53 years Total

year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings including interest 572250 62,063.63 - 67,786.13
'T'rade payable 570.00 L. - 570.00
Security deposits 2,208.31 2,813.29 1,345.26 6,456.86
Other financial liabilities 4.34 - - 4.34
‘Total 8,595.15 64,876.92 1,345.26 74,817.33
31 March 2016 Less than 1 1-5 year More than 5 years Total

year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings including interest 5,706.82 67,786.13 - 73,4592.95
Trade payable 144.49 - - 144.49
Security deposits 47746 5,028.03 1,172.16 6,677.68
Other fnancial liabilitics G5.14 - - 65.14
Total 6,393.91 72,814.16 1,172.18 80,380.26
1 April 2015 Less than | 1-5 year More than 5§ years Total

year
Non-derivatives
Barrowings including interest C‘o 5,753.86 73,492.95 - 79,246.81
Trade payable C 5989 - - 59.89
Sccurity deposits = 783.22 3,939.09 1,958.45 6,680.95
Other financiat liabilities *"_ 131.80 - - 131.80
Total \‘;5"_’ N\ /& 6,728.77 77,432.04 1,958.65 86,119.45

2
Fep accoS

(
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C) Market Risk

a) Intezest tate rigk

i) Liabilides
'Ihe company has ony fixed rate borrowings which are carried at amortised cost. They ate therefore not subject to intercst rate dsk as defined in Ind A8 107, since neither the carrying
amount nor the future cash Aows will Auctunte because of a change in market interest rates.

Assets
'The company’s fixed dcposits, interest bearing security deposits and loans ave carried at fixed rate. 'Fhercfore not subject to mterest rate risk as defincd in Ind AS 107, since aeither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will Buctuate because of a change in moarket interest rates.

i

-

b) Price risk
The Company’s exposuze ko price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVOCL To manage the price risk adsing from investments, the Company diversifics its portfolie
of assets.

Scnsitivity analysis
Profit oc loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company's profut for the periods -

Particulars 31 March 2017 3k March 2016
Price sensitivity

Price increase by (5 %o)- I'VOCI 1.07 0.87
Price decrease by {5 %)- FNOCI (1.07) (0.87)

33 Capital management

(a) Risk management
‘The Company' s capital manapement objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going conceri
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
"I'he Company monitors capital on the bsis of the carrying amount of cquity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balauce sheet.
Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing struciure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the
subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments o itin the light of changes in cconomic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return
éapiml to shareholklers, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debrt.

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 L April 2015
"Total borrowings 51,193.77 50,997.14 50,818.21
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (1,284.97) 559.74) (684.13)
Net debt 49,508.80 50,437.40 50,134.08
Total cquity 49,972.96 41,668.12 33,903.22
Net debt to equity ratio 99.87% " 121.05% 147.87%

(Lhis space Das been intentionally feff blank)
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42

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006™) is as under:
Particulars 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
1) the principal amount and the intercst due thereon remaining unpaid to Nil Nil NH

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in tcems of section 16, along Nil Nil Nil
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specificd under this Act;

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil Nil
each accounting yesr; and

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the Nil Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above arc
actually paidl to the small enterprise, For the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23,

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises has been determined to the extent such partics have heen identificd on the basis of
information available with the Company. The same has been relied upon by the auditors.

Segment reporting

In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108- operating segments and basis the review of operations being done by the scnior Management, the operations of the
Company fall under business of leasing of real estate activities, which is considered to be the only reportable busincss segment.

CRUSIL has reaffirmed its rating on the commercial mortgage backed securities (FCMBS"} to CRISIL AA (SO)/(Stable) vide letrer & March 2017 and ICRA
has also reaffiemed its rating on CMBS to ICRA AA (SO (Stablc) vide letter dated 7 November 2016.

Contingent liabilities

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts

Particulars 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015

Income tax (Assessment year 2010-11) 1,231.82 1,231.82 1,231.82

Income tax (Assessment year 2011-12) 1,285.51 1,285.51 1,285.51

Income tax (Assessment year 2012-13) 39.01 39.01 39.01

Service tax (for Financial Year 2007-08 to 2009-10) 767.07 767.07 767.07

Service tax (for Financial Year 2011-12) 60.76 60.76 60.76 '

Pased on the advice from independent tax experts/development on the appeals, the Company is confident that the additional tax so demanded will not be
sustained on the completion of appellate proceedings and accordingly, pending the decisions by the appeltate authorities, no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

Guarantees
There are no guarantees issued by Company on behalf of loan taken by others.

In respect of listed debt securitics, company has maintained 100% asset cover, sufficient to discharge the principal amount at all times for the debt seeurities.

In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a valuc on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the Balance Shect and provisions of all known liabilities have also been made.

Al loans, guarantecs and securities as disclosed in respective schedules/ notes are given for business purposes.

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Disectors of the Company had constituted 2 Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. In terms, with the provisions of the said Act, the Company was to spend a sum of T194 lakhs (previous year 3171.34 lakhs)
towards CSR activities during the year ended 31 March 2017. During the current company has contributed %194 lakhs.

Information pursuant to clause 53 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Loans and advances in the natore of loans to subsidiaries / Maximum balance during
. . . Closing Balance
Associates/ Joint ventures /partnership firms/ others Status* Status the year
2017 2016 2017 2016
DLE Emporio Restaurants Limited Tellow subsidiary, 2,621.75 2,621.75 2,621.75 2,621.75
DLF Home Developers Limited Fellow subsidiary 57,226.00 48,976.00 57,226.00 48,976.00

* excluding intercst accrued
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a. Relationshi

Related pariy disclosures

ion for the year ended 31 March 2017

In accordance with Ind AS-24 “Related Pacry Disclosures” of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the names of celated pactics along with apgregate amount of transactions awd year end balances with

them arc gwen as follows:

i) Holding companics:

#) DLF Limitec| (the ullzmate holding company)

b) Richniond Park Property Management Sexvices Limited {the immediate holding company}

ii) Fellow subsidiary companies at any lime during the year (with whom there were transactions during the year):

{il) Enterprises under the conirol of Key

&

) DLI¥ Utilitics Limited

b) DLF Promenade Limited

¢) DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited

d) DLF Home Developers Limited

€) DLF Cyber City Developers Limited

) Galleria Propecty Management Services Private Limited
& Lodhi Property Company Limued .

ial
ial

(KM P) of ulu

the year):

) DLF Brands Limited

b} Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited
) Giorgto Ammaai India Private Limited

holding

The following transactions were carried out with related parties ducing the year in ihe ordinary course of business:

ar their relatives at any time during the year: (with whom there were transactions durng

Descriprion

Holding companies

Fellow subsidiary

Associate companies / KMP

2017 2016

2017

2016

2017 2016

T ions during the year

Repairs and mai paid

DLF Utdlities Limited

596.68

160.01

Advertisement and Publicity

DLF Utilitics Limited

i7.75

151.52

DLF Emporio IL Limited

24.85

14.20

DLF Utilities Limited

83.22

147.30

Ladhi Property Company Limited.

" 354

Miscellaneous expenses

DLF Emporio R Limited

011

Expenses recovered

DLIF Emporio R Lamited

1838

DLF Brands Limited

0.89 1.51

Rod Redait Private Linited

373 3.60

Fi » Retail India Private Limited

Tnterest income

DLEF £mporio R Limifec

35504

35394

DL¥ Home Developers Limited

722361

6,375.03

Rental income

DLF Emporio K Linited

197.34

196.87

DLF DBrands Limited

105.02 138.85

Tod Retil Private Limited

42.20 -

Fi Retail India Private Limited

319.02 37912

Income on financial asset measured al amorlised cost

DLF Unhilities Limited

Gain on pre senl of fi ial aset

DLF Utilities Limited

2477

Finance expense

DLF Emporie R Limiled

3803

DLF Brands Linited -

3.07 4.65

Fermagamo Relail India Peivate Limiled

19.86 1191

CAM income

DLF Emporio Restausauts Limited

113.29

Rad Retail Private Limned

643 -

DLT Brands Limited

2037 5.00

Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited

64.16 15.64

DLF Utiilies Limited

312.35

Eleclriclty expenses

DLF Unilitics Limited

143.42

Busi ppori income

DLF Uilities Lumited

7418

Ungecured loans (piven)

DLY Home Developers Limited

6,250.00

4,725.00

Rental expense

DLF Uhilities

4.93

CAM expense

DLF Utilities

1,37242
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Deacription

Holding

Fellow

Associate com

(MP

Fi:

2017 2016

2015

2017

2015

2017

2016

2015

Datances al year end

Security deposis given

DLF Ulilities Limited

15.88

I'repald cxpenses

£6.89

DLF Unlines Lamited
Security deposil p

DLF Empornio Restaurant Limited

264.98

DLF Brarals Limited

242.13

60.22

59.66

Ferragamo Retail Ingia Private Timited

193,24

155.47

Delerred income

DLF Imporio Restauranls Limited

38.61

109.79

DLF Brands Limited

3.65

4.14

Ferragamo Retail Incia Private Limited

7.20

4482

U d loans (given)

DLE Emporio Restaurants Limited

2,621.75

262175

2,621.75

IDLE Home Developers Limited

57,226.00

48,916.00

44,251.00

‘Trade receivable

DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited

33.85

3115

20.48

'DLE Brands Limited

17.83

11.93!

Rod Retail Private Limited

26.19

Giotgio Arman lndia Private Limited

0.6

46

Fercagamo Retail India Private Timited

1.62

1.27

DLE Udilities Limited

0.75

Trade payable

DLE Uslities Timned

313.54

4.89

TILF BEmporio Restaurants Limitec|

10.80

354

Czpenscs payable

DLF Universal Limited

2.1%

I

DLF Ulilities Limited

2131

1746

20.39

Interest accrued Lut not due (reccivable)

DBLE Dmporio Restaurants Limited

31B.54

31B.54

31854

6,301.25

DLF Home Developecs Limited

5.731.53

147611

Share Caplial

Galteria Peoperty Management Secviues Private Limited

0.33

433

DL Cyber Gity Developers Limited

222.75

22275

Richinond Park Property Nanagrment Services Limited

DLF Assets Private Limited

0.03

0.4

(Tis sposce dias becat intentioally lft biawk)




DLFE Emporio Limited

Summary of significant acconnting policies and other explanatory information for the yeas ended 31 March 2017
(Ali amounts in ¥ laklis, unless otherwise stated)

44 First time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company’s ficst financial staternents prepared in accordance with Tnd AS.

"The accounting policies sct out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April
2015 (the Company’s date of transition). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Tnd AS has affected the Company’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with ¢he carrying valuc for all of irs property, plant and cquipment as recopnised in the financial
statements s at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as #ts deemed cost as at the date of transition. ‘This
exemption can also be uscd for investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has clected to measurc all of its
propenty, plant and equipment and investment property at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Designation of previously recognised financial instruments
Tnd AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in cquity instraments at 'VOCI on the basis of the Facts and circumstances at the date of transition to
Ind AS. I'he Company has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity mvestments.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity's estimatcs in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transiton to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance
with previous GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless theee is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 Apdl 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. ‘L'he Company made
estimmates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were nof required under previous GAAP

A} Investment 'm'equity insteurnents carried at FVIPL or FYOCT
b) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

C Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity lo reconcile cquity, total comprchensive income and cash flows for prior pedods. The following tables reprcsent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

I Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015

Notes to first 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

. time adoption
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 41,471.23 33,74349
Adjustments;
Impact of cffective interest rate adjustment on borrowings Note- 1 135.35 70.58
Impact of finandial instruments at amortised cost Note- 2 91.98 130.75
Tmpact of fair valuadon of investment through FVOCI Note- 3 5.46 8.39
TRectassification of preference shares to borrowings Note- 4 (4.10) (4.10)
Finance cost on finncial liability measured at amortised cost Note- 5 0.45 045
Deferred tax impact on above adjustments Note- 6 (32.25) (46.34)
Total adj 196.89 159.73
Total equity as per Ind AS 41,668.12 33,903.22

2 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

» Notes 1o first 31 March 2016

time adoption

Profit alter tax as per previons GAAP 7,728.20
Adjustments:
Tmpact of effective interest rate adjustment on borrowings Note- 1 64.76
Tinance cost on finncial liability measured at amortised cost Note- 2 &5 39.22)
Impact of fair valuation of investment Note-3 2.93)
Deferred tax impact on above adjustments Note- 6 14.09
‘Total adjustments 36.70
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 7,764.90

3 Reconciliation of statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016
Particulars Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activitics 7,948.11 - 7,948.11
Net cash flow from investing activities (2,318.20) - (2,318.20)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,754.30) - (5,754.30)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (124.39) - (124.39)
Cash and cash equivalents ar the 1 Apsl 2015 684.13 - 684.13
Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 March 2016 559.74 a . 559.74

* the impact is on account of reclassification as per Ind AS requirements.
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4  Reconciliation of the asgers and liabilities p d in the hal

sheet prepared as per Indian GAAP and as per Ind AS as ar 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015 is as

follows:
Particulars As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 Apnil 2015
Previous GAAT* Adjustment Ind Ae Previpus GAAT* Adjustment Ind As
Assets
Non-current asscls
Property, plant and equipment 0.16 0.00) 0.16 10.10 - 10.10
Investment property 39.273.67 0.00) 39,273.67 40,098.03 0.00 40,098.03
Financial assets
Investments 12.00 5.46 17.46 12.00 8.39 20.39
Loans 2,852.87 (86.75) 2,766.12 2,852.87 (8212} 2,763.75
Other financial assets 1,575.86 - 1,575.86 1,430.63 0.00 1,430.63
Non-current fax assets (net) 1,126.70 - 1,126,770 476.68 - 476.68
Other non-current assets 1,128.58 (1,071.54) 57.04 1,377.08 (1,310.30) 66.77
Current assets
Tinancial assets
Teade seceivables 328.28 - 32828 257.24 - 257.24
Cash and cash cquivalents 559.74 - 559.74 684.13 - 684.13
Other bank balances 622.29 - 62229 566.92 - 566.92
Loans 55,032.07 - 55,032.07 46,045.65 - 46,045.65
Other current asscts 343.85 (238.11) 105.74 287.15 (238.11) 49.04
102,856.07 (1,390.94) 101,465.13 94,098.46 (1,629.14) 92,469.33
Equily
Tquity share capital 495.90 - 495.90 495.90 - 495.90
Other equity 40,91.22 201.00 41,172.22 33,243.49 163.83 33,407.32
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Bocrowings 52,500.00 (1,506.96) 50,993.04 52,500.00 (1,685.89) 50,814.11
Other financial liabilitics 6,20022 (2,510.86) 3,8849.36 5,897.73 (1,737.43) 4,160.30
Dreferred tax liabilities {ned) 1,755.95 32.25 1,788.20 731.99 16.34 77834
Other non-current habilities - 394.99 394.99 - 71517 Mns5.17
Curren; liabilities
Financial Linbilities
Borrowing 4.10 - 410 410 - 4,10
Trade payables 144.49 - 144.49 59.89 - 59.89
Other financial liabilities 715.07 1,275.85 1,990.93 1,103.15 290,98 1,394.14
Other current liabilities GR.67 523.23 591.90 61.75 578.31 640.06
Shor-term provisions 0.45 (0.45) - 0.45 (0.45} -
102,856.07 (1,390.94) 101,465.13 94,098.46 (L,629.14) 92,469.33

* The previons GAAP fignres berve been reclassiffed fo confirm to Ind AS preseniation requirements for the purpose of this rote.

{X0is space has been intentiowally fft blank)
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Particulars Previous GAAP* | Effect of transition Ind AS
to Ind AS

Revenue
Revenue from operations 12,459.69 522,20 12,961.89
Other income 6,906.09 237 0,908.46
Total 19,345,778 524.57 19,870.35
Expenses
Finance costs 5,988.54 473.56 6,462.10
Depreciation 795.94 - 795.94
Other expenses 1,444.05 25.48 1,469.53
Total 8,228.53 499.04 8,727.57
Profit before tax 11,117.25 25.53 11,142,78
Tax expense 3,389.05 (13.42) 3,375.63
Net profit for the year 7,728.20 38.95 7,767.15
Other comprehensive income
A(l) Ttems that will not be reclassed to profit or lass - (2.93) (2.93)

(if) Income tax relating items that will not be reclassed to profit - 0.68 0.68
Total - (2.25) (2.25)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,728.20 36.70 7,764.90

* The previons GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirnt fo Ind AS presentation reguirements for the putpose of tbis nofe.

(This space has been infentionally kft blank)
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Note -1

Effective interest rate adjustment on borcowings

Under Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incusred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on
initial recognition. I'hese costs are recognised in the statement of profit and Joss over the tenurc of the borrowing as part of the finance cost by
applying the effective interest method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line
basis over the period of loan.

Note—2

A Tinancial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Under previous GAAP, financial liabilities were initially recognised at transaction price. Subsequently, any finance costs were recognised based on
contractual teems. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently casried at amortised cost
determined using the effective interest rate. Any difference between transacton prce and fair value affects profit and loss unless it quantifies for
recognition as some other type of liabticy.

B Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Under previous GAAP, financial assets and security deposits paid were witially recogniscd at transaction price. Subsequendly, any finance income
were recognised based on contractual terms. Under Ind AS, such fimancial instruments are inifially recognised at fair value and subsequeatly carried
at amortised cost determined using the effective intercst rate. Any difference between transaction price and fair valuc affects profit and loss unless it
quantifies for recognition as some other type of asset.

Note - 3
Financial asset measured at FVOCI

Under previous GAAP, investments in long-term equity instrument are shown at cost and tested for other than temporary diminution. Under Ind
AS, such investments are evaluated under Tnd AS 109 which requires the Company to account for such instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOQCI) (except for investment in subsidiacics, associates and joint venture),

‘Note - 4

Reclassification of pref ¢ shares to borrowings

Under previous GAAP, preference share capital was a past of share capital. Under Ind AS, 2 contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset by one entity to another is recognised as 4 fnancial liability hence the instrument has been carred at amortiscd cost and hence this
instrument has been classified to borrowings.

Note -5
Proposed dividend
Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of dicectors after the balance sheet date but before the approval of the Bnancial

statements were considered as adjusting events. Accordingly, proposed dividend was recognised s a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends ace
recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders in the gencral meeting,

Note -6
Deferred tax

Refained carnings has been adjusied consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with corresponding impact to deferred tax.

Note -7
Retained earnings
Rerained earnings as at 1 April 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

Note -8

Investment property

Under the previous G AAY, investment propertics were presented as part of property, plant and equipment. Under Ind AS, investment properties arc
required to be separately presented on the face of the balance sheet. There is no impact on the total equity or profit as 4 result of this adjustment.

Note - 9
Other comprehensive income
Ttems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit and luss are shown in the statement of profit and loss as “other comprehensive

income’ includes fair valuation of investment. The concept of other comprchensive income did not exist under previous GAAD.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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